REVISED NOTICE OF PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL
ELECTRONIC MEETING ACCESS
April 13,2021
at6:00 p.m.

THE MEETING WILL BE HELD ELECTRONICALLY

The Administration is providing this notice regarding access to the Electronic Meeting of the City
Council. The City Council of the City of Pontiac will hold a Formal Meeting on April 13, 2021 at
6:00 p.m. This meeting will be held electronically as allowed by the amended Open Meetings
Act and in compliance with the City of Pontiac Electronic Meeting Policy. The agenda for the
Formal Meeting is attached. The Pontiac City Council meeting is accessible as set forth below:

1. Procedures. The meeting will be conducted on zoom.us.
Topic: Pontiac City Council Formal Meeting
Time: Apr 13, 2021 06:00 PM Eastern Time (US and Canada)
Join Zoom Meeting
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85945839346?pwd=Y0VhNMIWWGIWROhtZ1hzZXFoV
WtuUTO09

Webinar ID: 859 4583 9346
Passcode: 416310

Dial by your location

1312 626 6799 US (Chicago)

The public may view the meeting electronically through
Pontiac TV which is accessible from the main page of the Official Website of the
City of Pontiac, www.pontiac.mi.us, as set forth below:

http://pontiac.mi.us/council/pontiactv/index.php

2. Public Comment. For individuals who desire to make a public comment,
please log onto the meeting using the zoom meeting link above. Type into the
chat public comment and your first and last name. The City Clerk will keep
track of the chat. When the City Council reaches the public comment portion of
the meeting, the City Clerk will call your name in the order that it was put into
the chat. When your name is called, please unmute yourself and you will be
given three minutes to speak. If you are accessing the meeting by phone, after
all the members of the public who entered their name into the chat to speak
during public comment have spoken, the City Clerk will ask are there any
members of the public who are joining the meeting by phone who would like
to make a public comment. Public comments are limited to three (3) minutes.



Additionally, you may submit your public comment in writing directly to the
Office of the City Clerk during regular business hours or by email with your
name and comment to publiccomments@pontiac.mi.us. All public comments
submitted by email must be received no later than 5:30 p.m. on April 13, 2021.
Public comments are limited to three (3) minutes. The City Clerk will read your
comments during the public comment section of the meeting.

3. Persons with Disabilities. Persons with disabilities may participate in the
meeting through the methods set forth in paragraph 2. Individuals with
disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services in order to attend electronically
should notify the Interim City Clerk, Garland Doyle at (248) 758-3200 or
clerk@pontiac.mi.us at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting.

Dated 4-12-2021, 1:00p.m.

City of Pontiac

Department of Information Technology
47450 Woodward Ave. Pontiac, M1 48342



PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL

Kermit Williams, District 7
President

Randy Carter, District 4
President Pro Tem

Patrice Waterman, District 1
Megan Shramski, District 2

Mary Pietila, District 3

Gloria Miller, District 5

Dr. Doris Taylor Burks, District 6

Jor its residents, fostering the vision of a family-friendly community that is a great place to live, work and play.”
Website: http:/pontiaccityclerk.com/city-council-meetings

Council Meetings are now livestreamed on Youtube.com on the Pontiac City Clerk page

FORMAL MEETING
April 13, 2021
6:00 P.M.
223" Session of the 10" Council

Garland S. Doyle, M.P.A.
Interim City Clerk

Call to order

Invocation

Pledge of Allegiance

Roll Call

Authorization to Excuse Councilmembers
Approval of the Agenda

Approval of the Minutes
1. March 30, 2021 Formal Meeting

2. April 6,2021 Study Session

Special Presentations (Presentations are limited to 10 minutes.)
3. Office of the City Clerk Election Update
Presentation Presenters: Garland Doyle, Interim City Clerk

4. Pontiac Youth Recreation and Enrichment Center (PYREC) Visioning, Feasibility and Attorney Report
Presentation Presenters: George Contis, Esq., Giarmarco, Mullins and Horton, Dan Ringo, Interim DPW
Director and Gavin McGuire,

5. Congressional Appropriations Requests; Status Report on City Allotment from American Rescue Plan
Presentation Presenters: Linnette Phillips, Economic Development Director, Matt Gibb, Esq., Special Counsel
for Economic Development, Darin Carrington, Finance Director and James Johnson, Congresswoman Brenda
Lawrence’s Office



Recognition Elected Officials
Agenda Address
Agenda Items

Closed Session

6. Resolution from the City Attorney to request City Council go into Closed Session pursuant to MCL 15.268(e)
to discuss specific pending litigation; specifically Rubicon Real Estate Holdings, LLC, and Family Rootz, LLC
v. The City of Pontiac and Garland Doyle, Interim Pontiac City Clerk.”

City Council
7. City of Pontiac Resolution honoring Ester Jimenez

8. Resolution in support of Pontiac Transportation Museum (This resolution was recommended by Council
Members Pietila and Taylor-Burks.)

9. Resolution to approve a Charter Revision for the August 3, 2021 primary municipal election ballot

Information Technology (IT)

10. Resolution to approve contract for new Ricoh Printers for 50" District Court, Ruth Peterson Senior Center,
Bowens Senior Center and Pontiac Youth Recreation and Enrichment Center (PYREC)

Mayor’s Office
11. Resolution to approve the purchase of 825 Golf Dr.as the Designated Facility PYREC Operations

12. Resolution to allocate a maximum of $50,000 for a one-year contract for lobbying services related to the
American Rescue Act and funding for Cities (The resolution does not identify a lobbyist.)

13. Resolution to approve instructions to Interim Clerk as recommended in the Finance Director and City
Attorney’s Report on Alleged Diverted Election Funds from the Clerk’s Office

Communication from the City Clerk
14. City Clerk’s Response to Nonfactual Report from the Finance Department regarding Alleged Diversion of
Election Division Budget Funds
Public Comment

Mayor, Clerk and Council Closing Comments

Adjournment



#1
MINUTES



March 30, 2021 Formal

Official Proceedings
Pontiac City Council
221* Session of the Tenth Council

Call to order
A Formal Meeting of the City Council of Pontiac, Michigan was called to order electronically, on
Tuesday, March 30, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. by Council President Kermit Williams.

Invocation — Councilwoman Patrice Waterman

Pledge of Allegiance

Roll Call

Members Present Attendance Location

Carter Remotely Pontiac, Oakland County, MI
Miller Remotely Pontiac; Oakland County, MI
Pietila Remotely _ Pontiac, Oakland County, Ml
Shramski Remotely i _ Pontiac, Oakland County, MI
Waterman Remotely : Pontiac, Oakland County, Ml
Williams Remotely 3 Pontiac, Oakland County, MI

Mayor Waterman was present.
Clerk announced a quorum. _

Excuse Councilmembers
21-84 Excuse Councllperson Doris Taylor-Burks for personal reasons. Moved by
Councilperson Pietila and second by Councﬂperson Waterman.

’ Ayes Miller, Plenla, Shramski, Waterman, Williams and Carter
No: None.:
Motion Carrled

Amendments to the Agenda ‘

21-85 Motion to move items 7-12 (# 7- Resolution to extend Landlord Cares Act, #8-
Resolution to adopt an Electronic Meeting Policy, #9 - Resolution to approve Humble Design as a non-
profit in Pontiac, #10 - Resolution to authorize Mayor to sign MDOT Funding Agreement, #11-
Resolution to approve establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) for 2100 S. Opdyke
Road and #12 - Resolution to approve Speculative Building Design for 2100 S. Opdyke, LLC) before
item #4. (Special Presentation on Medical Marihuana Review Process Update) Moved by
Councilperson Waterman and second by Councilperson Shramski.

Ayes: Pietila, Shramski, Waterman, Williams, Carter and Miller
No: None
Motion Carried

Approval of the Amended Agenda

21-86 Motion to approve the Agenda as amended. Moved by Councilperson Pietila and
second by Councilperson Shramski.



March 30, 2021 Formal

Ayes: Shramski, Waterman, Williams, Carter, Miller and Pietila
No: None
Motion Carried

Approval of Minutes

21-87 Approve meeting minutes for March 23, 2021, Moved by Councilperson Waterman
and second by Councilperson Shramski.

Ayes: Waterman, Williams, Carter, Miller, Pietila and Shramski
No: None
Motion Carried

Subcommittee Reports
Received Public Safety -March 12, 2021 report.

Councilwoman Doris Taylor-Burks arrived remotely from Pontiac at 6:08 p.m.

Discussion

City Council Special Committee on VEBA Implementatlon

The Council selected Council President Kermit Williams, Councilwoman Gloria Miller and
Councilwoman Patrice Waterman to represent the City Councﬂ on the special committee.

Resolution
Building and Safety
21-88 Resolution to extend Landlord Cares Act Program, Moved by Councilperson

Shramski and second by Councilperson Miller.

WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac in the m1dst of the Pandemlc is offering relief for Qualifying Pontiac
Landlords, and,

WHEREAS, the C1ty of Pontiac would waive one time the rental inspection fee for Qualifying Landlords,
and;

WHEREAS, the Mayor is proposing along with City Councﬂ to pass along this relief gesture to
qualifying landlords until June 30, 2021,

NOW THEREFORE be resolved that the City Council in solidarity with the Mayor hereby authorizes the
waiver of fees for qualifying landlords until June 30, 2021.

Ayes: Waterman, Wllllams Carter, Miller, Pietila and Shramski
No: None

Resolution Passed

Councilwoman Doris Taylor-Burks was having technical difficulties

Resolution
City Attorney

21-89 Resolution to adopt an Electronic Meeting Policy. Moved by Councilperson Shramski
and second by Councilperson Waterman.

WHEREAS, the Michigan Open Meetings Act allows meetings of a public body to be held electronically
in some circumstances through December 31, 2021; and

WHEREAS, the local State of Emergency for the City of Pontiac as declared by Mayor Waterman on March
13, 2020 as a result of the global pandemic; and



March 30, 2021 Formal

WHEREAS, this Council is aware of rising COVID cases and hospitalizations and therefore reaffirms the
existence of a local State of Emergency; and

WHEREAS, the local State of Emergency is an allowable circumstance to convene electronic meetings
pursuant to Section 3a of the Open Meetings Act; and

WHEREAS, electronic meetings allow for review and participation of the public in meetings of the Pontiac
City Council while also allowing social distancing during the pandemic;

NOW THEREFORE, the Pontiac City Council hereby reaffirms the existence of a local State of Emergency
and further resolves to hold all Council Meetings electronically until further notice, but not to exceed the
existence of the local State of Emergency; and further adopts the attached policy for the purpose of any
electronically held meetings beginning April 1, 2021.

Ayes: Williams, Carter, Miller, Pietila, Shramski and ‘Waterman
No: None

Resolution Passed

Councilwoman Doris Taylor-Burks was having technical difficulties

Resolution

City Clerk

21-90 Resolution to approve Humble Desngn, 180 N. Saginaw a 501(c)(3) nonprofit
organization in Pontiac as a recognized nonprofit organization in the community for the purpose of

obtaining a charitable gaming license. Moved by Councilperson Waterman and second by
Councilperson Shramski.

Ayes: Miller, Pietila, Shramski, Taylor-Burks Waterman and Williams
No: Carter
Resolution Passed

Resolution
Department of Publlc Works (DPW) ;
21-91 Resolution to authorize the Mayor to sign MDOT Funding Agreement (Contract

No. 21-5028) for the Construction of the W Walton Blvd Concrete Pavement Repair Project. Moved
by Councﬂperson Waterman and second by Councﬂperson Pietila.

WHEREAS, The City of Pontiac has recelved the funding agreement from the Michigan Department of
Transportation, ‘and,

WHEREAS, The Department of Public Works, Engmeermg Division has reviewed the subject agreement,
and;

WHEREAS, The project is budgeted in the 2021/22 Major Street budget,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, The Pontiac City Council authorizes the Mayor to sign the
MDOT funding agreement for construction of the W Walton Blvd Concrete Pavement Repair Project.

Ayes: Miller, Pietila, Shramski, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams and Carter
No: None
Resolution Passed

Resolutions
Economic Development
21-92 Resolution to approve the establishment of an Industrial Development District

(IDD) for 2100 S. Opdyke Road. Moved by Councilperson Waterman and second by Councilperson
Miller.



March 30, 2021 Formal

WHEREAS, pursuant to PA 198 of 1974, as amended (M.C.L.A. 207.551 et. seq.), after a duly
noticed public hearing, held on March 16, 2021, this Pontiac City Council, by resolution, has the authority
to establish an Industrial Development District, as defined in M.C.L.A. 207.553(2), within the City of
Pontiac;

WHEREAS, 2100 S Opdyke, LLC (‘“Petitioner”) is the owner of that certain real property located
in the City of Pontiac and legally described below (the “Property”);

WHEREAS, pursuant to M.C.LL.A. 207.554(2), Petitioner is the owner of 100% of the state
equalized value of the industrial property located within the proposed Industrial Development District;

WHEREAS, Petitioner has petitioned the Pontiac City C‘ouncil to establish an Industrial
Development District on the Property;

WHEREAS, construction, acquisition, alteration, or installation of a proposed facility has not
commenced at the time of filing the request to establish the proposed Industrial Development District;

WHEREAS, written notice has been given by certified mail to all owners of real property located
within the district, and to the public by newspaper advertisement in the Oakland Press and/or public posting
of the hearing on the establishment of the proposed Industrial Development District;

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on March 16,2021 at which all owners of real property
within the proposed Industrial Development District and all residents and taxpayers of the City of Pontiac
were afforded an opportunity to be heard thereon; and

WHEREAS, the Pontiac City Council deems it to be in the pﬁblic interest of the City of Pontiac
to establish the Industrial Development as proposed:

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Pontiac City Council, that the following
described parcel of landed situated in the City of Pontiac, Oakland County, and State of Michigan, to wit:

LAND IN THE CITY OF PONTIAC, OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN, BEING
PART OF LOTS 8 & 9, A PART OF "ASSESSOR'S PLAT NO. 110", A PART OF
SECTION 3, T. 2N., R. 10 E., AS RECORDED IN LIBER 52 OF PLATS, PAGE 26
OF OAKLAND COUNTY RECORDS, LYING WITHIN THE FOLLOWING
DESCRIBED PARCEL: COMMENCING AT THE NORTHEAST PROPERTY
CONTROLLING CORNER OF SECTION 3 (AS PREVIOUSLY SURVEYED), T. 2
N,,R. 10 E,, CITY OF PONTIAC, OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN; THENCE S
00°36'21" W-ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID SECTION 3, 1215.50 FEET;
THENCE N 89°23'39" W 60.00 FEET TO A POINT, SAID POINT BEING THE
INTERSECTION OF THE SOUTH LINE OF CAMPUS DRIVE (WIDTH VARIES)
WITH THE WEST LINE OF OPDYKE ROAD (120 FEET WIDE); THENCE S
00°36'21" W ALONG THE WEST LINE OF OPDYKE ROAD, 1331.66 FEET TO
THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE S 00°36'21" W ALONG THE WEST
LINE OF OPDYKE ROAD, 728.35 FEET TO A POINT OF DEFLECTION;
THENCE 8. 00°24'47" E. ALONG THE WEST LINE OF OPDYKE ROAD, 901.82
FEET TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF UNIT 5 OF CENTERPOINT
BUSINESS CAMPUS CONDOMINIUM, A CONDOMINIUM ACCORDING TO
THE MASTER DEED THEREOF RECORDED IN LIBER 16667, PAGE 11,
OAKLAND COUNTY RECORDS, AND DESIGNATED AS OAKLAND COUNTY
CONDOMINIUM PLAN NO. 1004, AND ANY AMENDMENTS THERETO, AS



March 30, 2021 Formal

LAST AMENDED BY EIGHT AMENDMENT TO MASTER DEED RECORDED
IN LIBER 35596, PAGE 855, OAKLAND COUNTY RECORDS; THENCE THE
FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID UNIT 5
AND UNITS 21, 22, 40, AND 24 OF SAID CENTERPOINT BUSINESS CAMPUS
CONDOMINIUM: (1) S 89°35'13" W 35.00 FEET, AND (2) N 00°24'47" W 20.00
FEET, AND (3) 210.91 FEET ALONG A CURVE TO THE LEFT (RADIUS 215.00
FEET, CENTRAL ANGLE 56°12'23", LONG CHORD BEARS S 61°29'01" W
202.56 FEET) TO A POINT OF REVERSE CURVATURE, AND (4) 226.24 FEET
ALONG A CURVE TO THE RIGHT (RADIUS 225.00 FEET, CENTRAL ANGLE
57°36'46", LONG CHORD BEARS S 62°11'13" W 216.83 FEET), AND (5) N
89°00'24" W 706.20 FEET; THENCE N 00°59'36" E 1815.00 FEET; THENCE S
89°00'24" E 1080.90 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

CONTAINING 1,939,980 SQUARE FEET OR 44.536 ACRES OF LAND.

SUBJECT TO ANY EASEMENT AND OR RIGHTS OF WAY RECORDED
OTHERWISE.

is established as an Industrial Development District pursuant to the provisions of PA 198
of 1974, as amended, to be known as Oakland Logistics Industrial Development District.

Ayes: Pietila, Shramski, Taylor—Burks Waterman, Wllllams and Miller
No: Carter

Resolution Passed

21-93 Resolution to approve Speculative Building Designation for 2100 S Opdyke Road.
Moved by Councilperson Pietila and second by Councilperson Waterman.

WHEREAS, 2100 S Opdyke, LLC (“Petitioner”) is the owner of that certain real property
located in the City of Pontiac and legally described below, (the “Property”).

WHEREAS, on December 8, 2020, Petitioner received Final Site Plan approval from the
City of Pontlac Planning Division to construct an approximately 711,360 sq. ft. building (the
“Bulldlng”) for the purpose of providing a multi-tenant industrial facility on the Property;

WHEREAS, on March 30, 2021; the Pontiac City Council, acting under the authority of
PA 198 of 1974, as amended (M.C.L.A, 207.551 et. seq.) , approved Resolution No. 21-92,
designating the Property as an Industrial Development District;

WHEREAS, as of the date of this Resolution, Petitioner has not identified specific users
for the Building;

WHEREAS, Petitioner has requested the Pontiac City Council to designate the Building
as a multi-tenant Speculative Building, as defined in M.C.L.A. 207.553(8), and upon the
conditions set forth in M.C.L.A. 207.559(4);

WHEREAS, as a condition of the adoption of this Resolution, the Building must be
constructed less than nine (9) years before the filing of the application for the industrial facilities
exemption certificate; and

WHEREAS, the Building otherwise qualifies under M.C.L.A. 207.559(2)(e).

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Pontiac City Council, that:

Section 1. The Building, to be located on the following described parcel of land situated in
the City of Pontiac, Oakland County, and State of Michigan, to wit:



March 30, 2021 Formal

LAND IN THE CITY OF PONTIAC, OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN,

BEING PART OF LOTS 8 & 9, A PART OF "ASSESSOR'S PLAT NO. 110",

A PART OF SECTION 3, T.2N,,R. 10 E., AS RECORDED IN LIBER 52 OF

PLATS, PAGE 26 OF OAKLAND COUNTY RECORDS, LYING WITHIN

THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PARCEL: COMMENCING AT THE

NORTHEAST PROPERTY CONTROLLING CORNER OF SECTION 3

(AS PREVIOUSLY SURVEYED), T. 2 N,, R. 10 E., CITY OF PONTIAC,

OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN; THENCE S 00°36'21" W ALONG THE

EAST LINE OF SAID SECTION 3, 1215.50 FEET; THENCE N 89°23'39" W

60.00 FEET TO A POINT, SAID POINT BEING THE INTERSECTION OF

THE SOUTH LINE OF CAMPUS DRIVE (WIDTH VARIES) WITH THE

WEST LINE OF OPDYKE ROAD (120 FEET WIDE); THENCE S 00°36'21"

W ALONG THE WEST LINE OF OPDYKE ROAD, 1331.66 FEET TO THE

POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE S 00°36'21" W ALONG THE WEST

LINE OF OPDYKE ROAD, 728.35 FEET TO A POINT OF DEFLECTION;

THENCE S. 00°24'47" E. ALONG THE WEST LINE OF OPDYKE ROAD,

901.82 FEET TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF UNIT S OF

CENTERPOINT BUSINESS CAMPUS = CONDOMINIUM, A

CONDOMINIUM ACCORDING TO THE MASTER DEED THEREOF

RECORDED IN LIBER 16667, PAGE 11, OAKLAND COUNTY RECORDS,

AND DESIGNATED AS OAKLAND COUNTY CONDOMINIUM PLAN

NO. 1004, AND ANY AMENDMENTS THERETO, AS LAST AMENDED BY

EIGHT AMENDMENT TO MASTER DEED RECORDED IN LIBER 35596,

PAGE 855, OAKLAND COUNTY RECORDS; THENCE THE

FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID

UNIT S AND UNITS 21, 22, 40, AND 24 OF SAID CENTERPOINT

BUSINESS CAMPUS CONDOMINIUM: (1) S 89°35'13" W 35.00 FEET,

AND (2) N 00°24'47". W 20.00 FEET, AND (3) 210.91 FEET ALONG A

CURVE TO THE LEFT (RADIUS 215.00 FEET, CENTRAL ANGLE

56°12'23", LONG CHORD BEARS S 61°29'01" W 202.56 FEET) TO A

POINT OF REVERSE CURVATURE, AND (4) 226.24 FEET ALONG A

CURVE TO THE RIGHT (RADIUS 225.00 FEET, CENTRAL ANGLE

57°36'46", LONG CHORD BEARS S 62°11'13" W 216.83 FEET), AND (5) N

89°00'24" W 706.20 FEET; THENCE N 00°59'36" E 1815.00 FEET;

THENCE S 89°00'24" E 1080.90 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

CONTAINING 1,939,980 SQUARE FEET OR 44.536 ACRES OF LAND.

SUBJECT TO ANY EASEMENT AND OR RIGHTS OF WAY RECORDED

OTHERWISE.

is hereby declared and approved as a multi-tenant Speculative Building pursuant to PA 198
of 1974, as amended (M.C.L.A. 207.551 et. seq.).

Section 2. The Building shall be designated as a multi-tenant Speculative Building for a
period of twelve (12) years from and after its construction, unless revoked earlier as provided in
M.C.L.A. 207.565.

Section 3. An application for Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate may be submitted
by the owner or lessee of the Building, as provided in M.C.L.A. 207.555.



March 30, 2021 Formal

Ayes: Shramski, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams, Miller and Pietila
No: None

Resolution Passed
Council President Williams left the meeting. Council President Pro-Tem Carter assumed the chair.

Special Presentations (presentations are limited to 10 minutes.)
Office of the City Clerk Medical Marihuana Review Process Update

Presentation Presenters: Garland Doyle, Interim City Clerk and Johnathan Starks, Special Assistant to the
Clerk

Update Report on City of Pontiac Allotments received through Cares Act and American Rescue Plan
Presentation Presenters: Mayor Waterman, Linnette Phillips, Economic Development Director and Darin
Carrington, Finance Director

Upcoming Infrastructure and Capital Improvements Projects for Calendar Year 2021
Presentation Presenters: Mayor Waterman, Dan ngo Interlm DPW Director and Abdul Siddiqui, P.E.,
City Engineer

Public Comments
Two (2) individuals submitted public comments read by the City Clerk

Mayor, Clerk and City Council Closing Comments
Mayor Waterman, Interim Clerk Doyle, Councilwoman Pietila, Councilwoman Shramski and Council
President Pro-Tem Carter made closing comments.

Adjournment :
President Pro-Tem Randy Carter adj ourned the meetmg at 7:59 p.m.

GARLAND S DOYLE
INTERIM CITY CLERK



#2
MINUTES



April 6,2021 Study

Official Proceedings
Pontiac City Council
222" Session of the Tenth Council

Call to order
A Study Session of the City Council of Pontiac, Michigan was called to order electronically, on Tuesday,
April 6,2021 at 6:00 p.m. by Council President Kermit Williams.

Roll Call

Members Present Attendance Location

Miller Remotely Pontiac, Oakland County, MI
Shramski Remotely Pontiac, Oakland County, MI
Waterman Remotely Pontiac, Oakland County, MI
Williams Remotely Pontiac, Oakland County, MI

Mayor Waterman was not present.
Clerk announced a quorum.

Excuse Councilmembers
21-94 Excuse Councilperson Randy Carter, Mary Pietila and Patrice Waterman for
personal reasons. Moved by Councilperson Taylor-Burks and second by Councilperson Shramski.

Ayes: Miller, Shramski, Taylor-Burks and Williams
No: None
Motion Carried

Approval of the Agenda

21-95 Motion to approve the Agenda, Moved by Councilperson Miller and second by
Councilperson Taylor-Burks.

Ayes: Shramski, Williams, Miller and Taylor-Burks
No: None
Motion Carried

Approval of Minutes

21-96 Approve meeting minutes for March 30, 2021. Moved by Councilperson Miller and
second by Councilperson Shramski.

Ayes: Shramski, Taylor-Burks, Williams and Miller
No: None
Motion Carried .

Council President Pro-Tem Randy Carter arrive remotely from Detroit, Wayne County at 6:10 p.m.

Public Comments
Four (4) individuals submitted public comments read by the City Clerk

Point of Privilege
James Johnson — Congresswoman Brenda Lawrence 15" Office



April 6, 2021 Study

Mayoral Monthly Reports
Personnel Monthly Staff Report (The report was not submitted)

Monthly Check Register (The check register for March 12 and March 19, 2021 are attached. The
check registers for February 12, 19 and 26, 2021; March 5 and 28, 2021 have not been posted on the

website.)

City Credit Card Statement (The Statement was not submitted.)

Adjournment
Council President Kermit Williams adjourned the meeting at 6:27 p.m.

GARLAND S DOYLE
INTERIM CITY CLERK



#3

~ SPECIAL
'PRESENTATION



2021 Municipal Election Requirements
Candidates for Offices of
MAYOR, CITY COUNCIL AND LIBRARY BOARD

Date of Primary Election: August 3, 2021
Date of General Election: November 2, 2021
Offices to be Elected: Mayor, City Council: Seven (7) Districts,
Library Board: Six (6) At-Large
Term of Office: Four (4) years: January 2022 — January 2026
Qualifications for Office: Mayor: To be eligible for Mayor, a person must have

been a resident of the City for one year immediately
before the term commences. City Council: To be
eligible for the Office of Council Member for a
district, a person must have been a resident of the
district for one year immediately before the term
commences. Library Board: A resident of the city.

Method of filing: Non-Partisan Nominating Petitions
Mayor: Minimum: 250 Pontiac registered voter
signatures Maximum: 400 Pontiac registered voter
signatures

Council: Minimum: 50 registered voter

signatures residing in the district you are seeking to
be elected. Maximum: 100 registered voter
signatures residing in the district you are seeking to
be elected.

Library Board: 40 Pontiac registered voter signatures
or pay $100 filing fee.

Where to pick up petitions: Pontiac City Hall - Office of the City Clerk
47450 Woodward Pontiac, MI 48342

Certificate of Circulator: The undersigned circulator of the above petition
asserts that he or she is 18 years of age or older and
a United States citizen; that each signature on the
petition was signed in his or her presence; that he or
she has neither caused nor permitted a person to sign
the petition more than once and has no knowledge



Where to file:

Last Day to file:

Last Day to withdraw candidacy:

of a person signing the petition more than once; and
that, to his or her best knowledge and belief, each
signature is the genuine signature of the person
purporting to sign the petition, the person signing the
petition was at the time of signing a registered elector
of the City listed in the heading of the petition, and
the elector was qualified to sign the petition.

[LJIf the circulator is not a resident of Michigan, the
circulator shall make a cross [X] or check mark [ ]
in the box provided, otherwise each signature on this
sheet is invalid and the signatures will not be
counted by a filing official.

Office of the City Clerk
47450 Woodward Pontiac, MI 48342

April 20, 2021 4:00 p.m.

April 23,2021 4:00 p.m.




































SPECIAL

PRESENTATION




 JGIARMARCO, MULLINS & HORTON, P.C,

HATTORNEYS AND COUNSELORS AT LAW

MEMORANDUM

TO: HONORABLE DEIRDRE WATERMAN, MAYOR
MEMBERS OF PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL

FROM: GEORGE A. CONTIS, ESQ. / REAL ESTATE COUNSEL TO THE CITY OF PONTIAC
GIARMARCO, MULLINS & HORTON, P.C.

RE: PYREC LEASE - OPTION TO PURCHASE

DATE: APRIL 1, 2021

Madame Mayor and Members of City Council:

In 2018 the City entered into a 3 year Lease Agreement {“Lease”) with Creative Schools Management LLC
(“Landlord”) to rent 825 Golf Drive for the use and operation of the Poniiac Youth Recreation Center
("PYREC"}. The Lease commenced on July 1, 2018 and it expires June 30, 2021. Dr. Carl Byerly is the
Landlord’s principal. A copy of the Lease is attached to this memorandum for your reference.

Section 13 of the Lease grants the City with two options to purchase the PYREC facility. The first option
period began April 1, 2019 and ended June 30, 2019 without the City exercising its option. The second
and final option period commenced January 1, 2021 and ends June 30, 2021 (the “Purchase Option”). The
City's purchase price of 825 Golf Drive during the second option period is $2,850,000.00. Council’s
approval is required to exercise the option to purchase.

At the request of City Administration, several members of the City Attorney’s Office reached out to and
spoke with Dr. Byerly on no fewer than a half dozen occasions in late 2020 and early 2021, in efforts to
secure a short-term or long term extension of the expiring PYREC Lease. Despite our good faith efforts,
Dr, Byerly expressed no interest in an extension of the Lease; he appears poised to retire from the
Landlord business and intends on selling 825 Golf Drive to third parties who have expressed a desire to
redevelop the Property if the City does not exercise its option to purchase.

If Council takes no action to exercise the option to purchasé PYREC Dr. Byerly will list 825 Golf Drive for
sale with a broker later this month, We are aware of at least two parties who have expressed interest to
Dr. Byerly in purchasing 825 Goif Drive and converting the facility to senior housing,

White it is unlikely that a third party sale of 825 Goif Drive can be negotiated and closed before June 30,
2021, the City’'s occupancy of PYREC cannct be guarantied after June 30, 2021. More importantly, without
purchasing the faciiity the City would be without a viable recreation center for its youth, as the conversion
of other City owned or controlled facilities cannot be facilitated in time and the cost of a complete

renovation_of those facilities for a youth recreation center far exceed the cost of purchasing 825 Golf
Drive,




MEMORANDUM TO MAYOR AND COUNCIL
APRIL 1, 2021
PAGE 2

As a result of several recent discussions and confirming emails with Dr. Byerly, the City Attorney’s Office
has been able to secure a 21 day extension of the Exercise Notice Period (described and defined helow).

Due to the notice requirements set forth in in Section 13 b. of the Lease (the "Exercise Notice”), the latest
date that the City may provide its Exercise Notice to the Landlord is now April 22, 2021,

Should the City elect to exercise its option to purchase, following its timely delivery of its Exercise Notice,
the following timeline and obiigations are to be followed as modified by the above-referenced extension
of the Exercise Notice period:

15 days after Exercise Notice Landlord and City establish a commercial escrow with a title company
of Landiord's choice,

Following the preparation of the Option Purchase Agreement
{discussed below) the title company will issue a title insurance
commitment insuring title to the PYREC Facility which will be marked-
up for the benefit of the City at Closing..

15 days after Exercise Notice Complete the good faith negotiation of the Option Purchase
Agreement not later than this date. The Option Purchase Agreement
shall include a 30 day inspection period for the City to conduct
inspections, environmental testing or obtain surveys and require the
City’s Deposit of the sum of $300,000.00 with the title company.

15 days after Exercise Notice | The $300,000.00 Deposit must be tendered to the Title Company on
or before this date. The Deposit is refundable until the 30 day
inspection period expires.

45 days after Exercise Notice All inspections of the PYREC facility are completed by this date and he
City either terminates the Option Purchase Agreement or proceeds to
purchase the PYREC Facility.

46 days after Exercise Notice | The closing on the purchase of the PYREC Facility is consummated.
the Closing Date is established | The Lease is terminated on the Closing Date,

{in all events closing occurs on
or before Jlune 30, 2021}

On or before the Closing Date | Landlord and the City enter into an Easement and Maintenance
Agreement to create parking and ingress / egress rights over 819 Golf
Drive for the benefit of PYREC.

| would be happy to discuss the contents of this Memorandum at Councit's next regularly scheduted
meeting on Monday March 30.




LEAsk ACREEMENT
{(WITH PURCBASE OPTION)

This Lease (hereinafter called the “Lease” ar (he “Agreement™) is entered inta as of the 1 day
of July 2018, by atd hetween Creative Schools Management, LLC lpcated at 819 Golf Drive,
Ponting, M1 (héréin called “Lessor”) and the City of Pontiac focated at 47450 Woodward Ave,,
Pontiac, M1 {hecein calted “Liessee™):

WrITnESSEFR: Lessor and Lessee agree ns follows::

Tk LEASED PREMISES

Suh_)ut (o the terms of this Lease, during the Term; Lessor hereby does lot and lesse o Lessee.

the entire propery known as 825 Golf Drive, Pontize, MI. 48341 (the “Building”), including,
without limitation, the land and all improvements Jocaled fherean (along with the Building, the
"Premiscs"), The definition of “Premises” also includes the use of the pecstnal property items
listed in the attached Exhibit A. Purther, the leased Premises also includes. the right of Lessee
ond its visitors to vse the ingress/ogress youd which traverses the Adjacent Parcel {as defined
helow), and the entire parking lot servicing the Promiscs aud fhe Adjacent Parcel, A dra\vmg of
the Dremises, the Adjacent Punel the ingress/egress toad, and fhe parking lol servicing the
Premises and Adjacent Parcel 3s sitached hereto as Exhibit B,

QO CCUPANCY

Lessee js lu have full and exolusive. ocoupancy of (he Premises (pxcept-fo the extent the
mgress/egtess road:and parking lot. are shared with the Adjacent Premiscs), Na other tenants will
have any Tight fo vecupy the Premises (except to the exiel the ingress/egvess road and parking
fo are shared with the Adjacent Prémises)

“LESSER'S UTIATIES { MATNI ENARCE

Lessee shall pay all chasges for.gas, water, sewer, clectricity and healing.service and all other
ulilities and serviees to the Premises (including nmnthly monjtoring costs by ADT),

Lesse shall be vesponsible for maintenance, Tepair and replacement of the ‘Building from the
inlerior walls in, including enstodial services, supplies, {rash removal, a dumpster and disposal.

Lessee shall be responsible for contracting for maintenance of the lawn and landscaping of the.
leased Premises.

Lessce shall bie responsible for snow and eo remavel from the pavemient, driveways, walkways
aud parking lots of the leased Premises, along with the shared Jogress/egress road servicing the
Prenises and the Adjacent Parcel. Lessor prabts to Lessed an easenient over, on, dnd to the
ingress/egress road for the purpose of complying with the mainteniance requirements in this
paragraph, and also for the puipose of perniitting (but not reguiring) Lessee (o remove snow and
ice from the parking lot al the Adjacent Parcel. ‘Lessee’s obligation to remove snow and ice fram

i
i
i
i
i
i
|
H
H







MEMORANDUM TO MAYOR AND COUNCIL

APRIL 1, 2021
PAGE 5

deduction for any reason whalsoever, the monthly installmenis of rent as foflows
("Base Rent"): $26,000, Total of anvual base rent is $312,000.00,

Base Rent and 2l other Rent due héreunder shall be paiﬂ to Lessor, withowt dedustion
or.offsct, in lawful money of the United States of América: Lessve shall pay the first
full month of Bage Rént 1o Lessor upon the mutual execution of this Lease,

(2)  Addifipnal Rent, -In addition to Base: Remt, Lessee covenunits and agress ta
pay as *Additinnat Rent,” and withpnt deduction or. offset, all other yums payable
under this Lease which, for the avoidimee of doubt, are: (i) the Maintonance
Obligationy, {ii) the Reimbursnble Expenses-(as definied batow), (i) any late fees of
interest charges, and (iv) any alterations o the Premises, as permitfed herevrider.
Base. Rent nnd Additionsl feni are sometites reférred 10 collectively hereln as

"Reut." Unless dtherise provided heredn, items of Addifional Rent shall become due
umid payable widiin five (5) days (oltowing written demand Trom Lessor,

(3)  General. I at any time payment of the menthly rental amount reserved tinder

this Section 1% mare than Mve (5) days past dug, Lessea shall pay Lessor d. lale fee in
the améunt of ten percent (10%6) of the amotnt past due, {he partics agree thal such a

late Jee represents o fuir and réasonable estimate of the costs Lessor will dncur by

veason of a Jate payment. Tn the event that ahy mouthly rental payient is more thain

teni (10) dnjs past due, in addition to the late fee, Lessec shall pay Legsor interest on
Lhe unpaid amionnt at he rate of ten petcent (10%) per anmum anmencmg on the
tenlly {10th) di\y afler such payment was doe, unlil such paymient is wade.
Acceplanée of the late fee or interest under this Section shall in no event conglitute a

Avaiver of Lc:»scc 5 tofault with respect 1o the overdue amourii, nor prevent Lessor

ffvm exercising any of his n;,his and reniedies,

All checks shall be payable (6 “Creative Schools Management, LLG™® and shall be
mailed to '

D Cul‘i Byerly
4759 Owasco Comyt
Cinvkston, MI 48348

To se and occupy the teased Premises only for the parposes for which lhey are
iniendled ay per this Lease Apréement,

Ta comply promptly, af Lessed's solg cost, with all fawful laws, orders, regulations,
and ordinances of all municipal; county, state and federal avthorities affécting the
feased Premises and the cleanliness, safety, becupation, and use of saine, including
without limitation the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1950 42U.8.C. 12101~
12213 (1991), 15 amended.

To observe nll reasonable reguintivns and réyuirements of insurmicée inderwriters
conceming the use: and condilion of the leased Premises fending o reduce fire

-3




MEMORANDUM TO MAYOR AND COUNCIL

APRIL 1, 2021

PAGE 6

2

rl

£

h.

linzards and fnsurance rates, and not permit nor ablow any rubbish, waste material or
produets to gecumvlale on the Premises. In addition, Lessee shull not dilow the
leased Prenitges fo be used for any improper, immital, or unlawful furpose, nor shall
Lassee gause, mainiain or permit-any nuisanee in, on or about the leased Premises.

Lessce shall keep the leased Premises in a clcan, saniary and safe conchtton at all
limes.

If the niture of the Jeaste’s Tisinéie requires Heensurg, Lessen shall keep in effect o
valid license fo operate the feased Premises for that purpose and pravide Lessor witlt
a burrent copy of the required license.

By accepting delivery of the Prenmea, Lessée accepis the Prepiises ps suiiable for
Tessee™s intended use and a5 being i pood and. sanitary operating ovder, éondition
and repair, AR 18, and withaw reprisentation of warranty by Tossor ag to the
conditioi, use or occupancy which may be made thereof (cxeept as may be provided
herein), . Any exceptions o the foregolng must be by writien agreement executed by
Lessor and Lessee, Léssed acknowledges thnt neither Lessor nor any- agent nor any.
smployge of Lessor has made any representations, warrdnty, estimation or promise of
any kitd or natir¢ whatsoover relating to-the physicil condition of the Premises;
including, by way of example only, the fitness of the Premises for Lesses’s Intended
use or the actwal dimensions of the Premises and Lesses expressly warrants and
represents thai Lessee hug rodicd solely on ils own investigation and inspectim} of the

Presmises i its decision fo. enfer ind Uiis Lease and let the Premises in-an “AS.IS"

eondition.

Lessee shatl be linble for and shall pay directly 1o the texing suthorify, prior to
delinguency, all laxes. levied againgt Lessee’s personsl property, if anty allerafion
instalfled by Lessce or any of Lessee's persanal properdy is assessed and taxed with
the Premiges, Lessee shall pay such taxes to Lessor within teh (10) ddys after delivery
1o Lesses of a sialeinsint,

In conneetion with its operntion of the Premises during the Term, Lessee shall;

a. Uilize the Premiscs for cducation and cnrichment programming, whether
produced by Lessee or by a third party (“Programming™);.

b. Ensurc that the Premises offers Programming hy or through an drganization that is
recognized nis 3 school by the Stufe of Michijsun, Dopdrlmcnt of Pdueafion;

o, Offer-Certiflcates of Complcuon for Programming produced by Lessae; .md

d. Mnsure that Programiming is performed by instructors of approprisie training and

" qualification (end, where gpplicable, with certifcatipn us may be required by the
State of Michigan, Departmignt 6f Edugation).

Except as sol forth invnedintcly above (or elsewhere in his Lease), Lessee shall have

np particolar obligations rogarding the operation of the Premises:

Lussor's Obligations




MEMORANDUM TO MAYOR AND COUNCIL
APRIL1, 2021
PAGE 7

The Lessor ¢ovenants that the Lessee, on payment-of the Rent at the time and in the mamer
aforespid and pcrlbtmmg all the foregoiug covenunts, shull and may peacefully and quictly
have; told, and enjoy the Jeased Premises for the Term.

i Insurance and Indemnity

i 1ndéemnification/Linbility:

N Lessee yhall indemnily, defend (using comisel setisfaciory {o Lessor in ils
sale discrétion) und hold banmicss Lessor, and its affitintey; and their
cemployegs, managers, partners, officers, dircetots, contraciors and agents.
from ‘and aguivst alf clmms, demands, habﬂihcs obligntions, damages,
‘ pcnalu&i, causes of action, suits, judgmenis, and expenses (mciudlnb
attomr:.ys fews)- srising from or iolated 6 (§) the occupancy, vondition,
aperation or use ol the leased Premides, (1) any actident, beourmunee, fujury
Aty or death of persons, or fogs of or damage 1o property occurting bn or
about lhe feased Prewmises, (jif) use or misuse of any portions of the leased
Premisés by {he Lessee or any of Lessee's respective agents, r:uniraciors,
employees, visitors, and invilees, or (iv) Lessee's failure to per.torm its
ubhgd.lmnq under tlns Lease, The oblipations: of Legsen under ihis Seotion
arjsing by reason ol auy ocevtence taking place dnring the Term of this
{8430 shall survive any 1éemination of this Leasc,

Léssor shall indemnify, defend (using counsel satisfactory 1o Less‘ee in its
sole discrétion) nnd hold harmless Lessee, and jis affiliates, aad {heir
employees, managers, partness, officers, directors, conlaclors and agents
from and sgainst all clmms, dcmumls, linbilities, abligations, damugos,
pennlties, cuuseés. of ootion, suits, judginents, and £XenECs (mcluding

- allomeys’ fees) arising fran or related {o'(§) any aceident, oeeusTenec, injily
10 or death of persons, or loss of or dumage i¢ properly occuming on or
about the lgased Premiizes which is ¢aused by Lessor or its agenls {in wholg
or in part), or (i) Lessor's [ilure to perform jis obligations itnder this Lease,
The ubligalions -of Lessor under this Seclion arising by reason of any
ocourreice. taking place duting-the Term of this Lease shall survive any
termination of this Lease. '

The Lessor will proeure and keep in effect during the Term hereof
armmiereial pengtal Hability iasurance on 4n océurrenee basts with limits of
at least Two Million Dullars ($2,000,000.00) per oceurrenes, with @ Tyvo
Million Doljar {(52,000,600.00) aunual general aggregate.  Such policy
shall include coverage for bodily injur)r', property damage, Pretises fnd
operations, personal and ndvemmug injury .and coniractual liability
‘Insurance that covers the indemnification obligations of this Lease,

h. Clonnnereial Property Insirange:




MEMORANDUM TO MAYOR AND COUNCIL

APRIL1, 2021
PAGE 8§

Lessor. shall' procure and pay for commereinl properly insurance for protection
against perils included within the. standard; form of “nfl-risks™ fire and' .cosualty .
‘insurance policy on the Bnilding in gn amount not Jess than one huadred percent
(100%) of it full replacemient vatue {fom time w time during the Term.

. Contents/Lessee Improvenents:

Lessee shall: be reyponsible for securing any lnswrdnce it deems adviguble on ifs
persons] properly, Lessee improvements, or for business intémuption, and Lessor
shall have no !mbihty with respect to any foss-which rmight have heen covered by
such insurance.

Alterations

Tessee ay make no alterations; additians, or inprovenients to the leased Premises without
the Lessor's prior written consent (whic ghail be given promipily; and not ynreasonably
withheld); provided, however, that Lessor shatl be permitted 1o maintain the Premiscs ‘in
conformance with the réquirements of this I.ease, and Lessee shall be peanitied to make de
minimus slierationy, additions, or improvenents fo the Premises (less than $5,000.00 per
‘beennence), I\nlwthsiandmh the foregoing, no structural shanges to the Fremises shall be

made without fhie FLesvor's prior Wiitten consent (which shiall be given prompily, and not

wmredsorably withbeld). Allsuoh nlterations, additions and improvements shall be ut the
expense of the Lessee and J.essee hereby indemmifics ard holds Lessor hanmiess from all
cosls, Hability and Joss of any kind and all slaims of loss-or liability, in any way arising out
of or-by reason of any such alterations, additfons or improvements, Upon vacation of the
Jeascd Pretnises, said inprovementy, ndditions and pllerstivns-sholl, of Léssar's oplion,
become the. property of tha Lessor. Lessee shall promptly remove ull such alterations,
additions and improvements required by Lessur Lo be removed aid Léssee shatl resiore the
Premises ofier such removal fo. substantially their condition prior t_u ke fime such
alieratipn, addition or improvement was made; Al fumnishings and equipment which ate
not attached of aflixed to the leased Premises made or placed by Lessee upon the leased
Prémises shall be the property of the Lessee, and the Lessee shall be ptrmilt':d i@ remove
the sante t the enid of the "l'erm ol this Tease, and Lessee agrees fo repair any damage to
the Premises or the Building incurred thercby.

M Lessor consenis to Lessee’s performance of any alteration ot addition to the leased
Premises (*Work"), Lessee shall cosure that the Wotk shall be made in accordance with alf
.'lppllcnble laws, repuldtions and the builditip codes, in g good ond workmunlike mariner
and in guality repsonably satisfacfory 16 Lessor. In addition, prior to comméncenioni of
any Wotk, Lossee must submpiit to Lessor for 'xppwval_ which: approval Lessor -inay
withhold n #s sole sind absoluie discrétion:

) i complete g6t of pluus and. specilications preparcd ‘and sealed by &
registered architect or éaghicer;

(i) acompleie set of drawings and specificutions for mechaoical, electrienl nnd
plumbing systems; and

0




MEMORANDUM TO MAYOR AND COUNCIL

APRIL 1, 2021
PAGE S

(i) & Hst of the coutractors and subcontmctors (fogether, "Confroctors™ who
will perform ihe Work;, topether with proof of insurnee .and petforimance
and labor bonds, in sueh mngunts and with such carriers. or sureties
s Lessor may reasonably reguire.

Lessor's approval of (he foregoing items (§) {kirongh (i} shinll create no responsibility or
linhilily on the part of Lessor for their completeness, design sufficiency or compliance with
all Taws, miles and regulations of governmental agencies-or authorities.

No person shall -be entitled o any lien on the leased Premites beeuvse of any lobor or
mpierial fornished {0 Lessée in connection wiily any alterations or improyements by Léssée;

and nothing in this Lease shall be construed 16 constituie a consent by Lessor to the
creation of any He. 10 any fien is filed ngainst the leased Premises ns & result of a claim
afafost Lessee for fabor or material fumished 1o Lessee, Lessee shall cause the Hen 1o by

dischurgied of recond within fificen (1'5) days ofler [iling, ur notify the Lessorihat thete

cxisls i good Tailh dispute concerning iie len for which Lesses is chhgcmly pursuing
resolution, If Lessee fails to cause the licn to be discharged within such time {of fails to
notify Lessor of a-good faith digpute), Lessor may, williout the obligation fo.do so, payoff

the lign and Lessee chall seintburse Lessor for all éosts and expenses incured by Lessor o

pay and discharge stich Jien, including, but nof Hmited to; yeasonable atlomey fees ("Lien
Expenys"). Tesseo shall indemmnify Lessor from ‘any costs, including, bt not linited to,
Teasonable pftorney fees, in conniégtion with any such ley,

In the event Lessee Tails to reimburse Lessor within thirty (30§ days alter receipi of Lessor's
demand for reimbursement for any Lien Expenst intiirred by Lessor with respect to any
tien ("Delingueney Date"), Lessee shall be required to pay to Lessor, on the Delinguency
Date gd every {hity (30} dnys ikereafier wniil Léssor reeeives such reimbursenient, in

. addition 16 the amownt of sugls Lien T’:-;pensg:, a fate fee i the amount of five percent (3%)

of thé oulstanding amount &f the Lien Bxpense. Aceeptance of the fate fee of inferest under
ihis ‘Section shnll v no event consliinle & waiver of Lessee's defanlt with respeot to the
overdue amount, noy prevent Lessor from exercising any of his rights and remedies,

Eminent Domaiin

if ﬁﬂy perdend (50%) or more of either the Premises is permanently taken for any public or
guasi-public putpose by any lawful governmental power or auihority, by exervise of the
right ¢f upprupnutaon, invérse coridemnation, eondemnation or eminent domam, or-sold 1o
pmvenl such taking (each such event béing referred to as a “Condemnption”), Lessor may,

ot ity-aption, teratinude this Lease os of the dute title vests in the condemning panty. 1 fifty

percent (50%) or more: of the Premises is taken and if (be Premises remdining after such
Condemuption, Lessée shall have the nghl to terminate this Lease as of the dale title vests
i the condemning party. IF eithier party c!u.Ll. {n terminate this Lease a5 provided herein,
suchi election shall be nade by wiitten notice to the other party given within thiry (30)
days aRer {he nature and extont of suoh Condenmntion havie beer finally deteonined, IF
ndither 1e6sor 5or Légsee-elects fo tenniiinte this Lehse to fhie exient permitied abave,
Lessor shall promptly restore the Premises, to the extent of any Condemnulion award

7




MEMORANDUM TO MAYOR AND COUNCIL

APRIL 1, 2021
PAGE 10

weaived by Lessor, to substantially the same condition as exisied pror to- such
Condemmation; allowing Jor the reasonable effecls -of such Condemnalion, and a
pro;;onjonate abatément shall bs matle o the Base Renf and all gther sums owed heraunder
cosresponding to the time during which, and o the portion of the fluor area of the Premises
(adjusted for any intrease thereto resulting from any reconsuucuon) of which; Lesset 3§
deprived on aceount of such Condemnation and resloration, as reasonably detanumed by
Lessor. Excg=p1 us expressly provided in the irmmediately preceding sentence with respect
to abatement of Base Rent, Lesses. shall have no ¢lain agaivist Lessor for, dnd hercby
relonses Lessor and Lessor's ageats frow résponsibility for and waives its entire claim of
recovery for wny cost, loss or expense suffered of dncurred by Lessée as a yesult of ahy
Conderunation, whethet permancat dr lempovary, dr the repair -or restoration of the
Premises following such Condemnation, including any cost, Joss or expense resulting from
any Joss of use of the whole or-any part-of the Premises and/or any iconvepienve or
annoyance occasioned by sich Condemnalion, yepair or résloration,

Lessot shall be entitted to aniy and all compehsation, damngcs. mcome, rent, awards, or any
inferest thorein whatsoever which may he paid or made in connection with any
Condémiation, and Tessee shall have no claim apainst Lessor for the value of any
unexpired term. of this Lease or otherwise; provided, howéver, tiint Lessee shall be entitled
to recsive any avward separately allocated by the wundemning dutbority fo Lessee for
Lessee's refocution expenses of the value of Lussee's properly (speelfically excluding
fixctures, altesations and othér componients of the Presmises which under this Lenss or by law
age or at the expiration of the Term will begoms the property of Lessor), provided that such
award does nol reduce any-award othenwise allocable or payable to Lessor.

Taxes

Any real property laxes assessed againgt the leaséd Premises shall be paid by Lessor;
pravided, however, that if the Premises 10ses its status as i school, and a3 4 result, loses any
favorable-lax exemptions, the purlies agree 1o split the cost of any increase in real property
taxes (however, Lessee’s contribution shalj be capped at $3,000,06 per year),

Assionment aud Subleting

Lesses covenands {hat it will ot nssign, sell, morfgage or in any manner transfer of

ericumber this Lease or any interest herein; of s.ublct the leased Premises or any part or
paris thereof or grant uny concession or licénsé or vtherwise permit acoupancy of all or any
purt thereof by others withost in cach case first obtaining the prior written consent of
Legsor, whivh congent shall be given promptly snd shdll nol be unreasonably withheld.
The consent by Legsor to an gssignment or subletting shall not in any way be construed to
selease Lessee from obtaining the cxpréss consént of the Lessor o any further assignment
or subletting of any part of the leased Premiscs nor shall the colleetion of rent by Lessor
from any assignee, sub-lessee or other occupant be deemed a watver of this covepant or the

acceplunce of the assipnes, sub-fessco or ovcupant ‘ss a lesseg heréunder or a release of

lieasce from the further performance by Lessee of the covenants in this Lieuss on Lossee's
part 10 be perfonned, Whether or not Lessor consents to auy proposed ussignment or

8




MEMORANDUM TO MAYOR AND COUNCIL

APRIL 1, 2021
PAGE 11

subiease, Lessee shall pay Lessor's rensonable atlorneys® fees and costs fncuned by Lassor
(not to excecd $1000) in evalvaling any proposcd assipnment or sublease within thifty (30)
days ailer written tequest by Lessee, Notwithsianding ihe foregoing, Lessee shall he

potmitted fo assipn or sublet space at the Premises to such of its affiliates or partvers. ay
might be ntcessary in order to comply withi requirements of Section 1(3),

Without limitation as to other reasonable grounds for withholding consenl, the pories

héreby agees that it shall bie rengdrublé under this Ledse and under any applieable law Tor.

Lessor to withtiold consent to any proposed nsyigument or sublease where oné or fore of
the following apply: The iransferee interids 1o vse the Premises for purposes which aro not

-permitted tinder this Lease; ihe trunsleree is a povernmental agenty oI ah msimmenmmy

thereof (other than the City of Pomtiag, Michigan);. or the transferce is nol  party of
suilieient finuncial worth end/or finanoial stability in light of Ihe responsibilities 1o be
ndentaken in connection with the transfer on the date consent Is requesied.

For purposes of this Lease, an assipmment shall also include: (l) if-Lessed is a partnctship,
the withdrawal of change, voluntary, involuntary or by operation of law, of fifty percent
(50%) or more of the pariners; or transfer of fifty percent {50%) or more of parinership
interests, within o twelve (1 2}-month period, or the dissalution of the parinetship without
tinmediate reconstitution fhereof, and () if Legsee isaclosely hold corponition {ie., whose
stock is ot publicly held and not iraded through ah exchange or dver the counter), (A) the
dissolution, mgrger, consolidation or other regrganizalion of Lessee or (B) the sals or other
transfer of an apgregate of fifty. percent (50%) or more of the voting shares of Lessee (other

~ than to immediate family members by reason of gift or death), withiu a twelve (12)-monih

period, or (C.} a mortgage, hypothecation or pledge which results in a change In controf of
an-agpicgate of [ifly percent (50%) or morg of the-voting shares of Lessee,

Defanlt

“The ocenrrence of sany one or more of the following evedts {hercinafler referred to as
*“Events of Default”) shatl constitute a breach of this Lenst by, Lessee;

a. if Lesscd shall foil 10 pay rent or fiy other sum when sod py the smng becomes
due-and payable;

b. Ii Lessee shall fail to perform or abserve any olher teym hereaf 10 be perfomied or
observed hy I'éssée under this Lense;

t. if Lesset ghall mike a general assigiment for the benefit of creditors; or shail
admiit in writing ifs inability 1o pay its debts as they become due or shail file a
pelmon in bankruptey, or shall be adjidicated as insolvent or shall file a pelition
in any proccedmg seekmg my reorganization, arangements, composumn,
feadjustnient, liguidation, disselution or similar relief under any present or future
statute, law or regulation, or sball file an anewer admitling or fail tiniely fo contest
or aequieses in the uppmmmenl of nity trusteo, recsiver or liquidaior of Lessce or
nny maderiai parl of ils properiies;

9




MEMORANDUM TO MAYOR AND COUNCIL

APRIL1, 2021
PAGE 12

o il this Lease ot any eslate of Lesses hereunder shall be. lcviéd upon wuder any
attachment or excewlion and such attachment o1 Execution ¥ minl vicaled within
thiirty (30) days;

' if Lessee vaeates, abandons or deserls (lte leased Preinises of Lossee faily to fully
oecupy the lensed Premises-for more than thirty (30) consgoulive duys; or

5 A i theie.is & revoention, termination or other invalidation of any permit, license or

authotization - with respect to Lessee’s use and/or occupancy of thoe Iéased
Premises, including, but nol limifed to, certificates of accupadcy; business
licenses or charlers.

Upon the oscinrence of an Event of Default: (i) for an Event of Default undsr §a, Lossor

shall provide Lesses with written notice of said Bvent of Defauli, and Lessee shall Tave
soven (7) days to care same; (1) for an Event of Default under Ba throvgh 81 Lessor shall
provide Lessee with. written fiotice of said Bvent of Défault, and Lessee shall have lhirly
(30) days 1o cure same (uuless 3 cur¢ cinnot reasonably be effoctualed in 30 days, in
which case Ihe fime to cure shall be extended for a reasonable amount of time; provided,
however, that Lesset i@ dilipently pursiing a cure).

Remedies

{Upon the ocsbrrence of ai nncured Event of Default, in nddition 1o any other remnedies
‘whicl miy he available o Lessur, Lessor may, at bjs option, sfler providing (o Leasee
any noiles required under Michigan Law, g one of moré of the folowing:

A, Terntinaje this Lease and, upon such tennination, This Lease shali come fo an end
and -expire upon Lessor's terminabion, but Vessée shall remain Jiable for niyy
damages Loessor miy incur by reason of any defaull of the Y.essee 1o comply with
the ferms and conditions of this Ledase; and/or

b, Bither with or-without {eiminating this Lease, Lessor may immediately. or al any

time afler the uncored Event of Defaull or afler the date apon which this Lease
shat] expire, réenter the leased Premises or any part thereof; withouf notice, citlier
by summary proceedings or by any other applicable action or proceeding,
(without being tiabie fo indictment, prosesution or dimages thercfore), and iy
repossess the (eased Premiscs and remove any nnd all of Leysee’s property and
effects from the tessed Premises; and/or

L, Either with or without ferminating this Léase, Lessor may relet the whote or any
parl of the leascd Promises from time to. time, either in the. name of Lessor or
otherwise, 1o siich fenant of tenants, for sich tenm. or temms ending before, o or
after the expirution of ilis Lsase, at such renfal or-renfals and upon such other
conditions, which may include concéssions andl frize tent periods, as Lessor, in ils
sole discrelion, ridy determine. In the event of any such reletting, Lessor shall not
be liable for the failure to coltcet any rental due wpon any such reletting, ond

1




MEMORANDUM TO MAYOR AND COUNCIL
APRIL 1, 2021

PAGE 13

10.

{1

12

such faifure sholl operate to refieve. Lessee of uny lisbility under this Tease or
ofherwise o wilect ity such liability] and Lessor may make wueh repuirs,
replacetnents, alterafions, additiony, improvemerils, decorations and other
physical changes in and to the icased Premmises as Lessor, in its sole discretion;
congiders advisable or necessary in tonnection with any such releging ar
‘proposed retetting, without relicving: Lessee of any Hability under this Lease or
olherwise afﬁ,cting such lability; -provided, however, :thal Lessor ghall, at oll
tiines, make a-commicreintly yensonable offort 1o miftigate iis damages; andfor

d. Agcelerate gt Rent due for tlie balange of the Tenn of this Lease and declare the
same fo be immediatoly due and payible; and/or

L. Lessor shall have the right to regover all amoudis payable by Lessee hercunder as
they betome due wnd all other damapes incurted by Lessor as n result of oo
nnetred Byent of Defaull including, withoist finitation, attorney’s fees and costs;
anddor

L. Lessormay exercise any other right or remedy available at Taw or in equity.

Contfolling Luiv; Nu Othér Leive or Repressubalives

This Lease shall be govémed by the laws of the State of Michigan. There are no
understandings, Leases, representations, or warfanties, exptessed or implied, other than
thase set forth in a writlen addenduwn or supplement -execuled simollaneounsly herowith,

or ns herein sel forlh fully or incorporated by specific reference, respecting this Lease of

any real or personal properly leased heteunder.

Non-Waiver; Modifications

No waiver gf any provision of this Lease, or @ breach thercof; shall ‘be consiried: as 4
continuing waiver, nor shall il constitule i wiiver of any olher pravision or breach. The
acceptance. of parl {but adi ol) of a rent installineni(s) due Yessor herowader shall nef
copslitole a waiver of default hereunder for nonpayment of rent: The acdeptance of all or
part of u tent iostallment(s). due Lessor hereunder shatl not copstitute a watver of any
other type of defaull hereunder. No modification, alteration andfor gmendment of this
Lease shall be binding upon the other parly hereto, unless the same shall be reduged to
writing and signed by the paty against whemn it is sought 19 be enforecd,

Nutices

Whenever imder this Lease provision i made for nolice of any kind, unless otherwise
expressly herein provided; it shall be in writing and shall be served personally, sent by
registered or cenified mail, with poslage propaid, of sent by Federnt Bapress or ather
similar neyl busingss day air courer; Notice shall be deeriied gwcn uipion-“pérsonal.
delivery or one (1) business duy following deposit with na air courier to the nddress of
Lessor or Lessce, s the tase may be, as stated helow, or $ueh other address as either of

11




MEMORANDUM TO MAYOR AND COUNCIL
APRIL 1, 2021

PAGE 14

EN

the parties may subsequently designate in writing by notice to (ke other party In the
mignner reguired hereint

To the Lessor n:

Dy, Caxi Byerly

4759 Owasco Court
Clarkston, Mi. 48348

To the Lessce at: ‘The Prédiisés
With a required copy to:

Paul A, Thursain, Esy,

Giarmarco, Mollins & Horton, P.C,

101 W, Big Beaver R, Suite 1000
Troy, M1 480184

Purchase Opition

Leasor hereby grants Lessed no option ta purchise the Premises (the "Purchiage Option™)
during the periods commeriving as of Apiil 1, 2019 and ending o Jung 30, 2019, and

.comimencing as of January 1, 202) and cading pn June 30, 2021 (each an "Opfion

Teriod™), on the termis and c_ondino_xw set forth herein,

a Copgiderntion. ‘The consideralion for the Purchase Opiion will be the execution
of thia Lense; "The parliex expressly ackuowiedge and agrec ilisl siel consideration & of
‘sag;mﬁcmi value angd thit, bused upon such adéquate consideration, the Purchase Option
i8 valid and fully cnfon.cnb!c

‘b Limitation on Opion/Exercise of Option to Purchase. The Purchase Oplion shall

be valid only if, nt the time of exercise of ihe' Forchiase Opfion snd as of the Close of
Escrow {dufingd below), Lessce it rot thea In defaul wnder the Léase (following any
applicable notice and gure. pediod). I such condition is met (or expressly woived by
Lessor); Tessee may, subject to the provisions of this bechnn, purchase (he Preiniscs by
dclwcrlug 1o Lessor not more than fwo hundred seventy {270Y days ond not dess than
ninely (90) -doys advanee writlen nolice prior {6 the date selected by Lessee: for the
purchase of he Premises of the electivn to purchase ("Excrcrse Notice") in sceordance
with the notice provisions set forth hercin, For clurity, the dato selevled by Lessée for the
purchage of the Premises must ogeur during the Option Petiod.

€, Purchase Price, The purchase prive [or the Presiises wider the Purchase. Optlon

dated April. 1, 2019 and cading on June 30, 2019 is $3,150,000,00 ‘the purchase price for

{he Premises undet the Purchosw Oplion dated January 1, 2021 and énding on June 34;
2021 4s $2,850,000.00 (each a "Purchasé Price”, as appIJC'1blc) The Purchuge Price will
bie paid, in full, in cash ai Close of Tserow (as hereafter defined).

12




MEMORANDUM TO MAYOR AND COUNCIL

APRIL 1, 2021
PAGE 15

& Escrow, Within fhirly. (30) days of ihe Bxercise Notice, the parties will open

cscrow with the comntercial esetow office of Lessor's choice ("l:scruw Holder). Lessor

and Lessee will éxconts and deliver to Escrow Holder, in & timely manter, all eserow

instruotions and dther documents rensonzbly necessary to consumiriate the tmnsaction

conieniplated by the exercise of thila Purchase Qption.

Y Title, 'On the-Closing, Lessor will-convey e to the Promisés togelher with all
appurtengnees, easciments, ‘developiment rights, confract rights, permits, tangible: and

intangible property relating to the Premises, mineral, oil, gas and other hydrocorbon

substances on, in ot under the tand, nind all nir nnd water fghts, benelicial easements, and

rights-of way pertaining Whereto ‘by good and sufficient Warranty ‘degd, along with a bill

of sile in the formm nod Lontmmng warrandiey in scéordance with thé-customs in the
County ixt which the Premises is located (the “Counky™), fres and cledr of al} liens atid
encumbrances (cxéepl sis waived by Lessee), but olherwise in iis AS 1S, WHERE IS,
condition. Curigpt real properly taxes shall be pmraied o a due date basis as of midnight

~onthe date of Closing, s though said taxes were paid in advance.

f. Costs and Bxpenses, Any costs incurred through Escrow shall be allocated o

Lesdor or Legses hereunider in the mariger cusfomury dn the County. Lessor shall be
respousible for paymenl of any lransfer faxes, and for the. cost of the title po]lcy,
conveying title o tho Preniisés in ihie condmon reqaired in thé Oplion Purchnse .

-Ayreement (defined below) which, &t a gitpimimi, shall inchade: {Ha policy amount not

Jess than the Purchase Prive, and (i) a policy delivered without standard exceptions

{except as hny be tvaived by . essee)

g Close of Bsorow. For piirposes of this Agreement, "Claging” aind "Closo ol
Escrow® will be defined 4s the daie that the deed conveying title to the Premises s
delivered to ‘Lessec.

h.  Excoutlon of Optien Pwchase Aprcement. Within thidy (30) days ofer the
Iixerdise Notice, Lossor and Lessee shall négatinte in goad faith and epter into n puivhage
aprecment copipleted in accordnics with this Section (" Option Puréhasc Agreement™),
"The ‘amount of deposit shufl be Three TTundred Thousand Dollars ($300,000.00). The.
Option Purchase Agreement shall pennil Lessee, withina 45-day period, 10 conduet due
diligence of the Premises, Gile, envirommental, suryey,-and any other matlers cusiomary
for the purchase- of real propérty, and the deposit shall be refundable to Lessee tmiil the
iime for due ditipence Investigntion expires.

& Termination of Leage on Close of Bscrow. -Affer the delivery of the Excrcise

Notice, ihis Lease will con{mue in fnll foree and eﬁ’ect until the.Close of Eserow, and on

the Cime of Bsergiw, Lhig Lease will tcmnnatc and the pariics will te relenséd from alt

futare liabilities aud oblgntions nccmmg undler this Lense, xcept those which, by the

provisions of Uijs Lease, expressly survive (he: expiration or temsinativn of the Tenm..

‘Notwithstariding anything 10 the contrary contained in this Lease or the definitive

pwrehose agreement, if The Close of Escraw is not consnmmsted for:my reason, including

13




MEMORANDUM TO MAYOR AND COUNCIL
APRIL 1, 2021

PAGE 16

H,

default by Lessee, this Lease will remain-in full force and effeet. Tf the Closé of Eserow
is not consunimated oh' account of 4 defanlt by Lessee hereunder or under the Option
Purchase. Agreemertt, ther for the avoidanee of doubt, Lasses’s -right to the applicable-

‘Purghuse Option shall gutormaticafly extinguish,

Je Memorandum of Option. Lessee shall be penmitied, ot its expense, 1o prepare arid
record with the appropriate Register of Deeds office u Memorandum of Option
memorializing Lhe sgreements of jhe partics sct for ih in this Section. Any such recording
shall nof reference the Purchase Price,

"k, Eisemenl and Parkinp, Lessor is the owner of the immedtately adjacent parcel,
818 Golf Drive (the “Adjacent Parcel”). As porl 6f the consummation of the Purchase

Option, Lessor and Lessee agree 10 execule an Basement: and Maintepance: Apreemént
that svill provide, amoug othér fenns: (3) that Lessee shall be granted a perpetual, non:
exclusive easement over fhie ingress/cgress ervicing the Premises, and the cosl of
mauintaining the cascment shall be shared by the Lessez and-the owner of the Adjacent

Parcely and (ii) the creation of an perpetual, -non-exelusive. casement over and on the
parldng 16t shared by the Premises and (he Ad;dcent Parcel; which casemcnt shail permit
the visitors of bath pareels to park anywhere on the parking ot {but maintenance shall not

be shared; the parcels shall be responsible for the mainfenance and sepair of their
_respective portions of the parking Jot). "The Basement and Mainlenanee Agresment shall

be recorded 4t Lessee’s expense at the Close of Dscrow, Lessor shall not sell, aysigm, or
atherwise fransfer any pwnership in or fo the Adjacent Parcel wiless and il -the
Fasemint and Maintenance. Agreement shall be prepared and recorded,

Damage / Desteaction

If the Premises is danaped in whole pr parl-by Hre-or other insured ensualty, Lessor wilt
give Lessee notice 6f the tinie which will be nceded to repair such damage, as determined

“by Lessor in its sole disorction; and fhe leétion (if any) which Lessor hns hade
epording to Giis Section, “Such notice will be given na Inter than the fory-fikb (45th)

doy (the "Natice Dafe") dller the [ire or other insured.casualty,

A: If the Premises is damaged in whole or part by fire oy other insured casvalty to

-an- cxfent which may be repaired within nigety (90? days afler the commencement of

repait, as determined by Lessor, Lessor will repair the dﬂmnge 1o the ektent of available

‘nsutarice proceedds. In that event this Lease will continue in full force and effect except

that ‘Base Renl wilk be abatéd on m pro rafa banis Tram the diite of the fire or ofher
insuced casuilty unll the dale of the substantial completion of siich repairs (the "“Repaiy
Period") in proportion 1o the renfable square foatage of the Premises which Lessee is
unable o use during the Reépair Period. There will be a similar dbatemient in the event the
Building is not repaired to substantjally the samie condition as before the damage.

Notwithamnding the foregoing, Lessor ghall nat be obilgaf.td lo - repuir ny damope

which verurs within the last Lwenty=-four (24) months of the Term, and i Lessor sa
slects not 10 repair, {his Lease shall {eminate on the Notice Date; provided, however,
thal Lessee sholl aptomaticnlly be granted a Pnrcbase Option exercisable within seven

14




MEMORANDUM TO MAYOR AND COUNCIL

APRIL 1, 2021
PAGE 17

{7) days of receiving writien nolice 6F Lessor’s élection nat to repair,

b.. I the Pieniises is damiagéd in whole or part by fire or other insured casualty to
an extent which may ot be repaired within ninety (90) days afier the commencemint
of ropair with avaiiable insurance proceeds, but which may be repaired -within one
hundred elghly (180) days slter {he commencement of repnir with available insurance
proceeds, #s determined by Lt.ssur then, at Lessoi'y aption, lessor may repair such
damaye o fhe Premises. If Lessor e!ct.is to répair such damage; Bagse Rent will bo
abated durihg the chau Period in propottion to the rentable square foolage of the
Premizes swhich Lessoe is unable o use durmg the Repuir Perod.  There will bea
siniilat -abatetnent Jo the event the Duiilding s not répaired to sibstantially the samie
condition as before the damnge, 1T Lessor does- not elect fo repair such damape, this
Lease will terminate on thé Natiee Date.

e If the. Premises is damaged in whole ot part by fire vr ofher ingured casdalty to
-an exleny which cannot be repaired within one hundred eighty (180). days after the

commgncément of répair with available insurance proceeds, -5 determined by Lesanr‘
then Lessor may cancel this Leasc as of the date of such damagc by writlen nofice given
10 Lessee on or before the Natice Date, If the Preinises is domaged in wholg or part
by fire or other insured msudity lo an extenl which cannot be repaired within oue
hundred vighty (180) doys after the comunencement 6 vopuir, uy  détormined by
Léssor, then Lessee may tantel this Lease n¢ of the date of such damage by written
notice gwcn 1o Lessor within ten {10) days after Lessot's delivery of & notice that
the repairs- connol be mnde within -such oné ‘hundred cighty 180 duys. It neither
Lessor-nor Lessee so elects to cancel this Lense, Lessor will repair the Prefises, and
Buse Rent will be nbated during i Repair Period in proporlion to the -césitable Squark
footage of the P'remises which Lessed is unable o use during the Repair Periad, “Theye
will be a similar sbatement ju- the event the Bullding i$ not repalred o substantially the
sume condition as before the damage:

d. Natmthstmldmg ihe provisions of subsections {n) (b) or (c) shove,. (t) if -the

proceeds of fnsurance are fnsuffiticnt lo pay for the wépair of any danvage to the Premises;
or if the Premises is damaged in whele or in pmt by an uninsured casunlty, Lessor will
‘have the oplion 10 rcpaJr such damage or terminate this Lense as of the dite of such
casualty by written notice 10 Lessee on or before the Notice Datg; and (i) if any such
damage by fire or other casunily is flie result 61 the: willful misconduet, negllgcnce or
wrongful failure io-dct.of Lessee or Lessee Parties, dhere wlll be no abaterent of Base
Reiit s ofhiervise provided for in this Section; and Lessee shall pay, ot Lessee's sole cost

and ¢xpense, to Lessor upon domand, the differénce hetweet the cost of repairing (he

damage and the tnsurance prpcwd‘: recelved by Lessor, imd Lessee shall not have any

right 1o terninate this Leédsc. Legsor shall -be déemed to have complied wilh the
fequitements of this. Scetion a¢ to the fime of completion ol vepairs so Jong a8 Lessor
-nakes -difigent -effort 46 compléle the repdirs in & reasonable amount of Hme,  Lessor
slall oot be liable to Leéssee of [ts employees, agents, contractors, invitees or customers

for loss or damage to -morchandise, tenant improvements, fixtares, automobiles,
furniture, egmpment, camputers, files or other property located at the Preprises {éxpect

15




MEMORANDUM TO MAYOR AND COUNCIL
APRIL 1, 2021

PAGE 18

I3,

8.

17

18,

for Lessor’s indemnitication obligations sel forth in Section 3). Lessee shall repair or
repluce wll 6f Lessée's property nid any Alterations at Lessec's sole cost and cxpcmc to
the extént ol {nsirance proceeds.  Lessce acknowledges. that it is Lessee's sole
rcwpuns:bthty {6 ohtaln adequate insutance coyermnge to compensate Lessee: for damage
to-Lessee's property and-Alierdtions.

Successors and Assigns

This Lease and each of the coveninis, conditions, and Leases confained hereln shall be
binding wpon each of the parties and upon thelr téspettive sugeessors, representatives and

“ ngsigns, subject (o the provisions as to nssignment,-and the benelifs shell inure to each of
the parties and te their respective permitied successors, representatives and assigos.

No Répreseniations

Lessce ackfiowledges that no tepresentation, verbal oy written, has heen made by tny
broker, agsnl or employec of Lessor regarding the condition of the imprévemefils on the

Premises. This Lease is hot made in rolinnce upon any representation whalsoever, -except
‘as may be provided herein.

Securify Deposit

The Lessar herewith ackngwledges the receipt of 1 month of rent ($25,000.00), which he

1% I retain as security for the faithful performance of all ol the covenants, eonditions, and
‘ferms of fhis Lease, but in no evént shall the Lessor be obliged & apply the sime tpon

rénts or other charges in arvears or upion dainages for the Lessea’s fhilure 1o perform said
covenunts, conditions, and terms; the Lessor may so spply the secnsity at lis option; arid
the Lessor’s right fo the possession of the Premises for non-payment of.rent or for any
other regsof shall not in ay event be uffecled by resson of the fact that ke Lessor holds
this secutity. 'The said sum, if not applied towird payment dfrent in arrcars or-toward the
payment of damuges sufiercd by the Lessor by reason of the Lessee's breutdr 6f the
covendnts, conditions, and Lenses of this Ledse, is 1o be retnrbed fo'the Lesser when this
Lease is forminaled, acgording ta the {enis, but in 1o event is the siid. security 1o be
returtied untl} the Lessee has vacaled the Premises and delivered possession to-the Lessor
In the event {hat the Lessor repossesses himisell of the feased Premises bacause of the
Lessee's default or because of the Lesses’s faifure to canry out the covenant, ¢onditions,
smd lerms of this Lease, the Lessor ony apply the said séeurity npon all damages sufTered
to the date of said repossession and may retain the sald security 10 apply upon such
damapes ns fony he sufferd or shall accrie thereafier by redson of the Lessee’s default or
breach, The Lesdor shall not be obliged b keep the said securiiy as 4 sepacaie fund, bt
may mix the said security with ils own funds. har shall Legsor be requiréd fo obtain ot
nccouhi for any interest on said funds,

.Fjl.l.'.f'l[ji]].]"ﬂ
The headings of this Lease:are for parposes of reforence anly and shall not Nmit or define

16




MEMORANDUM TO MAYOR AND COUNCIL
APRIL 1, 2021

PAGE 19

1.

20,

the scaning of any provisions of this Lease,.

Hazurdnus‘Matcri':;1§

a.

b,

Lessge shall be Nully rcsponsab!e al Its owt expense, (or compliance with all fdws
and/or repulations governing the 3Janclhng of Hazordous Materials .or other.
substances used or stored on the. Premises in corineciion with Lossee’s business
conducted therein. Al hazardous or potentiully Huzardous Materiats shafl be
sibred in proper conizivers snd shull be furlher protected against spills by
secondary ontaiiment facilities, Lessee shall riot spill, introdace; discharge or
bury any Hazardous Maierals, subsiance or gonlaminant of any kind in; on, or
nnder the Prenidses. or any portion thereof or any adjacent Preniises or info the
pmbicnt air, Leyscd shall not permit the discharge of any Hazardous Malordals
fnlo the sanitary or storm sewer o waler systen serving the Premises. of -auy
adjaceit Premises or into any murnicipal or other gavernmental water syslem or
storm and/ot sanilary sewer Systemn, Lessee shall employ all sppropriate
saleguards and procedures necessary or appropriate fo protect such systems from
¢ontaminatiot. Lessee shall undertake, at its-expense, aiy. necessary andfor

appropriate cleanup process in conncetion with any breach of the foregoing
covehants, atid withogt Himiting Lessee's other indemnity or insurance obligativns

upder this Lease, Legsee shull indemnify wed hold hannless Lessor from and
against afl Jiabikity: whether dircet, inditcct, consequential or otherwise, arising
from any incident or pecurrente on or sbout the Premises or any adjacent
Premises petuining to Hazardous Materials which rosults from. the nets or

‘omissions of Lessce, ity agents, employees or invitees, during the Vermi: hereof.

The oblipations of Lessce under this section shill suryive the termination of this

‘Lense,

"Hazardons Materials" shall include, -without -lirnitation, -any chemical or. other

materinl which is or may become injurious to the public heallh, safety or wetfare,

ot to the environmens, Hamniable éxplosives, pelroleumn fractions, pesticides,

radfonplive mitedals, végulated subslancts, huzirdoud or fokic substanees,

vonfaminating ‘pallutants of relatéd or similar materials, including by way of
cxample, spbstanges or materials defined by any federal, sfate or lochl

enviconmental law, ordinance, rule or tegulation, ineluding, without Jimitation,

the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of
]930 the Tlazardous Matenials Transporlation Acl, the Resoufce Conservation
and Reécovery Act, the Federal Insesticlde, Fu.ng:cidt‘ and Rodenticide Actor the
Michigan Bovirgimenis! Response Acl, pnd the regulations adopied and
publications promulgated pursnant thereto, all as smended:

Asbestoy

Teswets undersiands and agrecy thut it iy Lessea’s abligation fo comply with those porions
of Michigan's Ashestos - Rducational Facilitics Act ("AEFA"), the Tederaf Asbestos

Hazard Emnergency Response Act (“AHERA™), the Fedeml! Occuputional Salety and

17




MEMORANDUM TO MAYOR AND COUNCIL
APRIL 1, 2021

PAGE 20

2.

22,

ealth Act (*OSHA”) snd the Miehigan Occipafional Safety aud Health Act
(“MIOSHAY) which apply Lo i, ncluding any and al! repulations proniulpated thereunder
regulating asbestos-contalning materials in dny foshion whatsogver (collcetively, the
"Asbestos Reguiations™) with respect to the leased Premises, All obligations of Lussee
nnder-the Asbestos Regutations shall be performed by asbestos obalement confractory or
sueh other persong as are trained and licensed to inspect, evalyate-and dbale uibestos-
conlaining mterials, or thise matenals that are suspeeted or presumed 10 contain
ashestos, Legsee hereby indemnifies, defends and holds Lessor huvmiesy ffom all costs,
linbility and loss ol any kind and a}} claims of loss dr Kability, it any wiy- wrising éut of
of hy reason of Lessee's failure to comply with this Section ond/or the Asbestos
Reguldlmm Lessor represents and warranls that; as of the dafe of this Lease, the
Building is in comphiance with the Asbestos chulatmns, Léssor hereby mdemmﬁes,
defénds and holds Lessee harmless from alf costs, linhility and loss of ﬂny kind and all
claimy o Joss or liability, in atty wiiy. arising out of yr by reason of Lessor's breach of the
foregoing sentence,

Signg

Lessce has petmission 10 ereét an exterior mgn on the property of the leaged Premises
-nc]vemsmg the 1.cssce's intended use, The size, type, design, tegend, and fouidn musi

be In-compliance with al} applicable laws and sesttictions of secord, including but not
hmﬂc.d to, nll npphcablc cnt) ordinarices. Le.s.c,ee hereby ncknnwludhe.s and ugree'i to

Seetion in good repatr pod wmkmg order at all times, En uddition, Lessee hereby agrees
to indemnify, defénd and hold Tessor harmless (wsing connsel of Léssor's choice) from

.and agmnat ANy cosl, expense, c]a:m or Hability, inchuding reasonnble aftdracys'

Jies, unising Trom o related fo any sign erccled' by Lossee on the leased Premisés or the
mEiRieRIeE lhe_renf

Lessor's Cure

Al Bovenunts, teris sad conditions {6 be peHinmed by Lesseg under any of the termy of
(his Tease shall be ‘at liy sole cost and expense and without any .abptément of rond. 1T
Lesses shall fait 1o pay ahy sum of mongy, other then the payment ol Rent, reqirired {o be
pnid by it hereunder or shall faif to perform any -other act on-its part 1o be. perfonned
hereunder, ‘Lessor may, bul shall not be obligated so to do, ond withoul waiving or
releasing Lessee from any obligations of Lessee, make any such piyment 6r perfonu-any-
such other act on Léssee's part to be miade or performed as it this Lense provided. Tessee
shall IeixxlbUISc all sums 30 paid by Lessor and sll pecessary incidental cosks: refafed
thoréio (“Reimbursably Expenses™) within Tiftecn (15) daya of receipt of wiitten notice
from Lossor (“dequ&ncy Date™) of the amount -due. In the event Lessee fhils io.
reimbinse Legsor afler receipl of Lessor's demand Tor Reimbursable Expenses, Lessee
shall be requited to pay. to Lessor, on fhe Dclanucncy aje arid every Lhitty {30) days
thercafter hniil Lessor receives such fgimbutssment, in addition fo the amaint of sach
¢osts, b Inte fee in the amount of ten pereent (10%) of ke otitsianding amount of the cost.

Acceptance: of the late fee or inferest under this Scetion shall in no event constifute, a

IR




MEMORANDUM TO MAYOR AND COUNCIL
APRIL 1, 2021

PAGE 21

23,

waiver of Lessee’s default with respect to the overdue amouni, nor prevent Lessor from
exérdising any of his rights and remedies.

All Reimbursable Expenses. shall be degined Additional Reat, nod Lissor shall have (in
addition to any other right or remedy of [x:ssor) ihe same rights and remedics in'the evenl
of the nonpayment thereof by Lessee as in the casé of defuull by Lessee in the payment of
rent,

Lessur's Rightk and Non-dlability

»  Lassor shall have the deght (rom Hme 1o G, with at least 24-hours nofice to Lessee,
to inspept the leased Premises to confirm Lessee’s complisnue with this Lease,
+ Lessor shall not be responsille or liable to Lessee for:
« any loss or damage (bat may be occasionsd by o thiough the acts or
anissions of persons oceupying adjoining prrcels; or
‘w anyloss or damage resulting s Lessee or its property from theft or a failuie of
the seourity systems, if any, in the. shucturey oF improvements on, the leaséd
Premises; or
» orany damage or loss of praporty within the leased Premises from any causc
pther thap solsly by réason of the willful acts or omissions of Lessor or iis
agents, or Lessor's default under this Lease beyond any spplicable cure
period, and no such oceurrence shudl be deemed i be an actual or constructive
eyielion from the Teased Preises or resull in an abateinent of tenls,

If Lessor shall Fail to perform any covenont, lemm or condition of this Lease- upon
Lessor's ]Jdrl fo- be performed, Lessee shall pive Lessor notice of such defiull and ten
(10) days in which to cure such dcfnu!i provided, iF such clre: eanriof bie. reasonahly
completed within such 10-day peviod, then Lessor shafl have such additional timé as

nceessary 1o cure so long: a5 Lessor eprimenices {o oure within such 10-day pefiod and

diligent prosecutes such cure to compiehon 11 as a consequenge-of such default, Lessée

shall recover 4 moncy judgment against Lessor, such judgment shitt be saiisfied only

against the 1ight, title and iitorest of Lessor in the leased Premises and out of tents or
gther incomic from (he leased Premises by Léssor, or out of the considerstion recelved by
Lessor from the sale or ather disposition of all or any part of Lessor's right, title and
intgrest i e leased Premises, anit] Lessor shall 1ot be Hable for any deficiency. Under
no circumstanges shall any prc'sen{ or firture padtner of Lessor (if Lessor #s n parinarship),
future meraber or manager in Lessor (if Lessor is a limited liabilily company),-affiliate of
Lessor, or trusfée or beneficiary (if Lessor or any puriner or member of Lessor is a fist)
{collectively, "Lessor Parties"), have nny Liability for the perfnnnancc of Lessor's
obligations under this Lease. Notwithstanding fny .coptrary provision heréin, neither
Letsor xor the Lessor Parlies shall be linble undef- any ciroumstances for injury or
damage to, or literference with Lessee's business; or consequential damages, including,
but not lmmcd t0, .1oss of profits, loss of rents or other revenues, loss of business
opportunity, loss of ggodwﬂl or loss of use, in cach ¢ase, however oceurring; provided,
however, that he forcgoing limitution shali not apply to. Lessor's indempification
ublipations herein.

19




MEMORANDUM TO MAYOR AND COUNCIL
AFPRIL 1, 2021

PAGE 22

25,

27,

‘I'ransfer of Leased Premises by Lessor Prohibited

As Jonp ay Lesser’s Purchase Optiohs (or any one of them).remain ounistanding, Lessor
shall have no nght ta sell, assign, or ptherwise transfer ilsinferest ih the Premises without
Lessee’s consent. If guch a sale, assipnment, or transfer is permitted by Lessee, Lessar
shall. aviomatically be yelicved of any obligations or Jiabilities on the purt of Léssor
dcoraing [rom and nfler ihe date of such (ransfer and Tessee covenants and apreas fo
tecagnize e transférce as the Lessor uader this Lease, Under rio circumistonces will
Lessee permit a ‘sale, assignment, -or transfer. of any Jinteérest in the Premises unless
Lessee’s Purchase Options as desctibed hercin-are preserved,

Subordinafion and Non-Disturbance

This Lease and_the ¥ghts of the Lessoe: herepnder are hereby made suhjedt Ly angd
subordinate 10 .all mortgages now or hercaller placed upon the leased Premises. Lesses
covendnts und apreés 1o execute and deliver on:demiond an instroment o instnirgents
subordinating this Lease to the len of any such morigage or mortgages. In addition,

Lassen agreea that, npon the request of Lessor or. any morigaged of Lessor, Lessee shall
exceitie a commercially ressonable estoppel cerlificate on demand i form sauqfnulory 10
Lessor oF any nidtlgagee of Logsor,  Further, Lisses aprees to atiom fo Lessor's Jedder hi
the event of a foreclosure, In exchaige for Lessee's subordination and atlormment as
provided in this Seetion, Lessor agrees {on its behalf aud on behalf of its fender). that
Lessee’s possession of the Premises under this Lease and Lessee’s dphits and privileges
thetexmder shall not be diminished or interfered with by Lessor's lgnder, und Legses’s
occupnncy of the Premiscs shull not be disturbed by Lessor’s lender during the Term of
tho Lease or any ekiensions or reriowals thereols Both Lessée and Lessor agree that they
will cooperate in exetuling @ conimerdjally -reasonable Subordinution and Non-
Disinebancs Agreement atiho request of Lessor’s lender,

Altorueys’ Feey

IE cither purly hureto Tails 10 perfqnn any of ils obligutions under {his Tense or if any

: dmpuie drises bebweon the parties horeto congoming the meaning or mterpre!atmn of any

provision of this Lease, then the defauifing party ar the parly not prevailing in such
dispuic, as the casé may be, shall pay any and all costs and ¢xpenses incutred by the ather
party-oty necount of such defaufuand/or ia enforcing: or establishing its. fights hereunder,
including, withoul limifation; coum! costs and rua.-.‘onﬂbie attorneys’ fees and

disbyrsements,

Holdover

Lessee shall sumrender the Premiscs to Lossor upen Lhe expiration or earlier Jermination
ol this lease in good ggder and condition, reasoninbie ‘went and fear ekecpied, and

-otherwise in-compliance with -the teoms of this Lease,  Any-holding over after the

expiration 6f the Term,. without the express written comsent of Lessor, shall constitute an

20




MEMORANDUM TO MAYOR AND COUNCIL
APRIL1, 2021

PAGE 23

28,

29,

30,

a1

Event of Defaull and, without limiting Lessor's remedics provided fn this Lease, such
holding over shall be construcd o be a tenancy at suﬂ‘crancn, al a verital rate cqual to one
fumdred fifly pereent (150%) of the Bise Rent lust due jn. this Lease, plus Additiongl
Rent, and shall otherwisé be on the terms and conditions herein speclﬁed, so far as
apphbdbie pro¥ided, however, that in no event shall any renewal or-expansion opiion,
option to purchase, or other similar right or option contained in this Lease be decmicd
applieable fo any snch fenancy at sufferance, 1f the Premiaes are not surrendered at the
end of the Term or sooner {ermination of this Lense, Lesseg shatl indemnify, defend and
hold Lessor harmless from gnd apains any and alf Yoss, direct dr indireci dnmnges or
fiability resulting from delay by Leéssee jn so surrendering the Premises inchuding,
withont fimilation, any loss or-Habilily resulting from any claim apaing! Lessor made by
any suceeeding tenant or prospective tenant fownded on or resulting from such delay and
losses to Lessor due Lo lost opportanlties fo Iease any portmn of the Premises o any such
sticeeedingAénamt or prospeetive tenant, topetlier witl, in each case, deiva) attorneys® fees
and costs,

Jury Waiver

LESSOR AND LESSEE ACKNOWLEDGE. THAT THE RIGHT TO TRIAL BY.
_JURY IS A CONSTITUTIONAL ONE, BUT THAT IT MAY BE WAIVED, EACH
PARTY, AFTER CONSULTING {OR HAVING HAD THE OPPORTUNITY TO
-CON_SULT) WITH COUNSEL OF THEIR CHOICE KNOWINGLY -AND
VOLUNTARILY, AND FOR THEIR MUTUAY, BENEFIT, WAIVES ANY RIGHT
TO TRIAL BY JURY IN THE EVENT OF LITIGATION REGARDING THE
PERRORMANCE OR ENFORCEMENT OF, OR IN ANY WAY RELATED T0O
THIS LEASE.

Brolers

Lessor ang Lessee cach represents and warrants to the gther that neither it nor ils officers
or apents nor anyons acting on ils behall has deall with any reat esiate broker in the
negotigting or making of this Lease, and ench party agrees fo indemmily and lipld barmless
the other from uny claim or claims, and costg and éxpenses, including altomeys® fees,
inowrred by the indemnified party in conjunction with any such. claim or claims of ony
other broker or hrokers to 4 commdgsion in connection with this Lease as a result of the
netions of the indemnifying party.

Financial Stafeménts

Within ter (10} doys after Lessor's request, Lessee shiall deliver to Lossor the then éurrent
financial sintements of Lessee (including interim periods following the end of the last
fiscal year for which annual stalemenis dare availahle, if sueh statements are prcparecl),,
prepared or compiled by & cedified p;:bhc accountant, including o bulance sheet and profit
anid kay statément for the mios{ recent priot year.,

Mortgagee Protection

21




MEMORANDUM TO MAYOR AND COUNCIL
APRIL1, 2021

PAGE 24

32,

33

1f, in conngetion with obtaining financing for the Premises or any portion thercof, Lessor's
lender or investor shiall reguist reasonable, de nrinimus modilicufions (o this Leasy, Tesses
shitll not yorgasonably withhold, delay or defer its consent fo sigch mod:ﬁcdtmns, providéd
that such modilivations do oot ndversely uffect Lesiee’s dghts. or ‘ingrense Lessee's
obligations under ‘thiy Leuse. L(-.sscc shall give lo any trust deed or morigage. holder
{(“Holder™) ot the same time as it is given to'Lessor, 4 copy of ay notice of defanlf given
in Lessor, provided fhai, prigr to such nalice, Lessee his been notified, in writing (by way
of notice of assignsment ol rents and feases, or atherwise) of the addréss of. such Holder.
Lessee furlher agrees that it Lessor shall hove faited g cure such ‘default within the lime
.plmf;ded for in this Leagé, then the Holder shall have an additional twenty (20) days after
expiration of suth period, or after receipt of such notice from Lessec, whichever shall fast
-geeny within witeh fo cure such defautt or it such default cannof be cured within that time;
thett such additional time a3 may bic necessary-if within such twenty {20) days, any [older
hus commenced and 15 diligently pursuing, the Yemedies necpssary to- cure such. dofanll
(in¢luding, but not fimited to, commencement of foreclosure proceedings, if necessary o
effcct such siire), in which ¢vend this-Lease shall-not e torminated,

Conytruelion

This Lease shall b constreed and interpreted in accordance with the Jnws of the State
wheie the Preémises is loealed. Wo rule of construction to the effeet that miy atobiguitios
are to be resolved against the dralling parly shall be empln_yed in the interpretation of this
‘Lease, including the Exhibits aftached herelo. Al capimns in this Lease are for reference
only and shall not be used in the interpretation of this. Lease. Whenever required by the
context of this Lcasc. the singwinr shall. inctude the plural, the masculing shell include the
feminine, snd vice vérsa, If sty provision of this Lease shall be determined to be illegal
or uncnforeeable, such determination shall not affect any other provision of this Lease and
-all such other provisions shall remain i fill force and effect. Neither this Lease, nor any
mmnmandum, affidavit.or other writing with respeet theréto, shall be recorded by Lessee
or by any ong mhng through;, uhder or on behall of Lessee, and the recofding thereol in
‘violation of this provision shall make this Lease null and void at Lessor's election,

Counterparts’

This Leass may be gxcented in multiple counterparis, each ol'which shull be -deemed an
-origingl and g1l of which, shall :constitute one and the same instroment. “This Ludst
oy be exceuted by Lessur or Lossor and detivered fo the other parly in PDF, facsimilo or
similar electrpnic format shalt be binding on the party dulivering the exeented dacnment
‘with the same foree and effect as the delivery of a printed ¢apy of the doétiment with an
original ink signature,




MEMORANDUM TO MAYOR AND COUNCIL
APRIL 1, 2021
PAGE 25

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]

23










MEMORANDUM TO MAYOR AND COUNCIL

APRIL 1, 2021
PAGE 28

g ot

EXHIBIT A

Principal Office - Conference Table with 4 padded chairs arid 4 wooden chalrs
Tech Room - 3 wood tables

Frunt Dffice —8teel Desk with 2 wond chairs and fle cabinet

Oym - 2 Vending Machines and 2 glass display cases; sound systerm;.
scorchoard

Front office - Wood desland 3 chairs

Tyrout Offide « 2 woad tdbles and 2 wood ¢hairs

Front OfTice - Wood Table; 4 wood chairs, mogn table 7 tall cabinet

Front Bust Classronm — 10 Rectangular Wood tables {4 belong to JIA) and 70
stitall elementary-plastic chalrs

PP e

-9, Room 18 ~ 3 fle cabinets, 2 toacher desks, & 5 student desles

1t Room 106 -
A. .35 Elementary Desk / Chalr ¢ombo units
B. 22 Elementary Bluc plastic chairs
G. 26 Elementary Gray small hard p‘]astit tlairs
D. 10 Middle School Hard Plastic cliairs:
E.. 15 Upper Blem, Adjustable desks
F, 'Zscience tab tables
. 3 Steel Office Desks
H. .2 Middle School Desk / Chair combo units
1. -3 Tile Cabinets
]. ‘2 Wooden Glassyoom Tables

11. Cholr Ream - 2 Plaiios; Cholr risers (4 ségtions) 12 yiusic stands

12, Banil Room - 1 Fjano and Musie storsge cabinet

13. Dance Room ~Pallet Bars (4 sets} and Fie cahinet

14. Fireplace Reom — 4 Jarge buok shelves, 2 wooden office desks; 4 wood chairs.
‘% 1 waad iable )

15, Room 210 - Wooden teacher desicand 4 moon shaped tabilés

16.Room 208 ~ 17 Middle School desk /£ chalr combo uitits, teacher's desk & file
cabinel

17.4t00ni 209 - 12 Middle Schiool Clairs (peach color) & wodden téacher desk

18, Room 206 - (25 Middle School desk / chair tumbio uniits belong to JIA) , Adult
wootl desks sod Nie eahinet

19. Room 207 — 5 wood sclence tables

20, Roorh 205 - 11 Middle School desk / chair combo units

21.Twom 203 - Wood Table

22.Toom 201 - (campiter lal). 7 computer taldes {assorted) (2 belung o! HA) &
20 chairs

23, Teacher's lounge — refrigerator, 4 wood tables, mierowave 7 20 chairs'

24 Kitchen - 2 commerctal pas stoves, eté?


































City of Pontiac Youth Recreation & Enrichment

Programs 2020-2021

Enrichment Programming Ages Program Elements
Educational Support/Learning Pods 5-17 e Daily 7:30am-6:00pm
e Licensed School Aged Child Care Program
e |nstructional support for students in remote learning
e Resource for families of essential workers
e Breakfast, lunch & Snack daily
e Recreation & enrichment activities
Dance 5-7, 8-11, e Various forms of dance explored.
12-17 e Introductory to intermediate and advanced levels taught.
Arts & Crafts 5-17 e Youth are introduced to a variety of projects and art
forms that explore their creativity.
Music: Beginning Band with Charity 8-16 e Music exploration class that introduces youth to various
Music (Program Partner) instruments.
e Students learn the basics of playing wind, string, and
percussion instruments.
e Student are taught the basics of reading music.
Cranbrook STEM (Program Partner) 6-12 e Youth explore science, technology, engineering and math
through hands on activities and experiments
Chess Club 8-17 e Coming Spring 2021
Girl Scouts (Program Partner) 5-14 e Enrichment & Mentoring for Girls
Sports Ages Program Elements
Basketball Skills Clinics 5-7, 8-10, e Youth are taught the fundamentals of shooting, passing,
11-17 and dribbling.
e Teamwork, sportsmanship, and fun is stressed.
Sheriff PAL Soccer Clinics (Program 7-9, e Youth are taught basic soccer fundamentals through drills
Partner) 10-13 and games.
Youth Golf 8-16 e Coming Spring/Summer 2021
Youth Soccer League 7-9, e Coming Spring 2021
10-12
T-Ball 5-7 e Coming Summer 2021
YMCA Port Sports (Program Partner) | 6-14 e Provides sports sampling and free play activities for youth

Community Engagement

PYREC Visioning Session was held to obtain feedback
from community groups and stakeholders on March
25,2021

Information and input from the session will be used to
inform our program creation and implementation.




73

~ SPECIAL
PRESENTATION



CITY OF PONTIAC

OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM

Finance Department

5

D RS T o S

T S T A P A T e T S R S e T S S S R S T R R A S s

TO: Honorable City Council President and City Council Members
FROM: Darin Carrington, Finance Director
DATE: April 1, 2021

RE: American Rescue Plan Act of 2021

Attached is a presentation that provides an overview of the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021
that was recently signed into law by President Biden. This Act provides approximately $362
Billion of funding for state and local governments to help offset the economic impact due to the
COVID-19 pandemic. Of this amount, approximately $65 Billion is being targeted to cities,
towns and villages.

Based on the initial projections, the City of Pontiac is expected to receive approximately $5.8
million in funding from the Act. However, due to the formulas being used to determine funding
levels, the City of Pontiac is receiving a disproportionately lower amount of funding that other
comparable cities. For example, the City of Dearborn Heights is projected to receive $25.9
million, the City of Taylor is projected to receive nearly $12 million and the City of Royal Oak is
expected to receive nearly $30 million.

The formula being used that has created such a disproportionate funding level for Pontiac is a
result largely of the use of CDBG funding in the formula. More specifically, cities are broken into
two categories with one category being those cities that directly receive funding for CDBD and a
second category for those cities that do not directly receive CDBG funds. Because the City of
Pontiac is a sub-recipient of CDBG funds through Oakland County, this has resulted in negatively
impacting the amount of funds that Pontiac is projected to receive from this Act.

The Administration is currently working with officials at the county, state and federal levels to
highlight this disparity and to identify ways in which this disparity may be addressed and
corrected.

Page 1 of 1



Estimated State and Local Allocation Spreadsheet
Reference Guide

How fast will state and local governments receive the aid?

States, Tribal governments, territories, counties, and metropolitan cities (which generally have over
50,000 inhabitants) would receive their allocations within 60 days of submitting their certification of
need to the Department of Treasury.

Because it could take a full year for the Department of Treasury to calculate and disburse the allocations
for smaller local governments (generally those with under 50,000 inhabitants, comprising over 33,000
entities), the Department of Treasury is instead required to send those funds to the states within 60 days
of the law’s enactment. States would then have 30 days to disburse the funds to the local governments
(called “nonentitlement units of local government™) based on population. A state could ask Treasury for
an extension for distributing one or more of those allocations if necessary, but it would need to justify
why the extension is warranted. States would have po discretionary authority to change the amount of,
or attach additional requirements to, the payments allocated to local governments.

What’s the difference between a “CDBG City” and a “Nonentitlement”?

These terms are used on tabs 3 and 4 of the spreadsheet. “CDBG City” generally refers to cities of over
50,000, which would receive their allocation from the Department of Treasury based on a modified
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) formula.

“Nonentitlement” is short for “nonentitlement unit of local government,” which is the term used for
cities, townships, villages, and small municipalities that generally have fewer than 50,000 inhabitants,
Those allocations would be made proportionate to population and are subject to a cap of 75% of the
locality’s most recent budget as of January 27, 2020.

How reliable are the estimates on the “Nonentitlement Rough Calcs” tab?

The spreadshect estimates were calculated using public Census data, which poses four obstacles to
getting precise nonentitlement assistance estimates:

1. Analysts must manually remove all “metro city” governments and underlying areas located
within those areas. As users review the spreadsheets and point out oversights, updated
spreadsheets are being released.

2. The Census data does not identify cases where local governments overlap (for example, an area
with both a town government and a township government). This not only leads to issues in
allocating payments in these areas, as they will likely split their payment across such
governments, but also affects ALL nonentitlement governments because it affects the total
population base used to distribute nonentitlement payments nationwide. Acknowledging the
significant effects that overlap could have on nonentitlement estimates, the tab includes two
estimates:



o The estimates in the “No Overlap” Allocation (Column D) are at one end of the
extreme, and assume that whenever unclear, the overlap between governments is as small
as possible. This means the nationwide population is as large as possible, and thus the
payments to all governments are smaller because they cover more people.

o The estimates in the “All Overlap” Allocation (Column E) are at the other extreme,
assuming maximum overlap when presented with an unclear case. This minimizes the
nationwide population eligible for funding, thereby resulting in greater payments to all
nonentitlement governments.

3. Local governments may have unique structures (for example, if a city and county are
consolidated) that mean they are left off the spreadsheet despite being eligible for funding,.

4. The data does not contain local budget information, so it does not reflect instances where a
government would reach its cap of 75% of its most recent budget as of January 27, 2020. This
cap may put a local government significantly below the “No Overlap” allocation estimate.

Why are the nonentitlement estimates for a state different on the Nonentitlement tab compared to
the State and CDBG tabs?

On the “State and Level” tab, the “to Local Govts” column uses a “top down” simplifying estimate for
nonentitlement allocations, assuming that the percentage of people eligible for nonentitlement assistance
is constant across states.

On the “CDBG City” tab, each state has a line called [State, State]. This amount is the total amount the
state is estimated to receive for its nonentitlement units of local government (those listed on the
“Nonentitlement” tab), and also uses the “top down” simplifying assumption. For example, the entry for
“Idaho, Idaho” is the estimated amount that would be distributed across all of Idaho’s nonentitlement
units of local government listed on the “Nonentitlement” tab. However, these figures present the
following concerns:

1. Some states have larger shares of people in nonentitlement governments than others, even if
those shares can’t be calibrated precisely with the publicly available Census data; and

2. Knowing the total amount of nonentitlement assistance flowing to a state isn’t helpful to local
government officials who need more specific information about what their unit of government
would receive.

With that in mind, the “Nonentitlement Rough Calcs: tab uses a “bottom up” estimate that attempts to
better describe the amounts flowing to individual towns using the Census data, understanding that those
estimates will be inherently flawed.

These two different approaches (top down versus bottom up) mean that the [State, State] line of the
“CDBG Cities” tab will not match up with the sum of the state’s entries on the “Nonentitlement Rough
Calcs” tab.














































































#6

CLOSED
SESSION




Whereas, Michigan Open Meetings Act Section B(h), MCL 15.268(h), allows a public
body to go into closed session to consider material exempt from discussion or disclosure

by state or federal statute; and

Whereas, Michigan Freedom of information Act Section 13(g) exempts from disclosure

records subject to the attorney-client privilege;

Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved by the Pontiac City Council that it recess into ¢closed
session to discuss specific pending litigation; specifically Rubicon Real Estate Holdings,
LLC, and Family Rootz, LLC v. The City of Pontiac and Garland Doyle, Interim Pontiac
City Clerk, which is exempt from disclosure pursuant to MCL 15.243(1)(g ).



#1
RESOLUTION



City of Pontiac Resolution Honoring Estes Jimenez

WHEREAS, it is the sense of this legislative body to pay proper tribute to individuals of remarkable character whose

lives have been dedicated to uplifting, inspiring and empowering the community and whose lives exemplify the highest
ideals of humanity; and,

WHEREAS, on July 18, 1978, Ester Jimenez vivacious, energetic and eager to work, commenced a profound and
amazing career in public service and with the City of Pontiac which would ultimately span over four decades; and,

WHEREAS,; as a consequence of having a wonderful personality, impeccable work ethic and integrity and despite being
hired as a clerk typist, Ester Jimenez was afforded the distinct privilege of working in different roles and various
departments throughout the City of Pontiac, including Finance, the Clerk’s Office, Treasury and Human Resources; and,

WHEREAS, Ester Jimenez was always known to greet and meet everyone she encountered, regardless of race, religion,

creed, or political affiliation, with a million dollar smile, pleasant words and was always prepared to provide assistance
when necessary; and,

WHEREAS, Ester Jimenez is truly a rare gem whose authenticity is evidenced by her sincere enthusiasm and passion to
help others; and,

WHEREAS, Ester Jimenez not only held the City of Pontiac in high regard, but holds spending time with family and
the City of Pontiac retirees, near and dear to her heart; and,

WHEREAS, Ester Jimenez has also been an active and loyal member of St. Vincent De Paul Church and enjoys
crocheting, sewing, cooking and playing bunco.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that we the members of the Pontiac City Council and on behalf of the
citizens of Pontiac, recognize and honor with great pride and dignity, Ester Jimenez, for her over 43 years of outstanding
service to the City of Pontiac and for of tremendous contributions of leadership, selflessness and commitment to the
community. “Congratulations Ester Jimenez on your retirement.”

SKermae Willams

Kermit Williams, President

Randy Cartet, President Pro-Tem Patrice Waterman, Councilwoman

Llpon Phiamats Sy ot

Megan Shramski, Councilwoman Mary Pietila, Councilwoman

Slorias WMellor Diosts Daylor-GBinks

Gloria Millet, Councilwoman Dotis Taylot-Butks, Councilwoman







Pontiac City Council Resolution

Resolution in Support of Pontiac Transportation Museum

WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac, County of Oakland, State of Michigan (the "City"), has a very deep and
storied legacy in the transportation industry which extends back some 170 years or more and includes
significant societal contributions, including: (1) a robust carriage industry, (2) birth and growth of the
American truck industry, (3) astounding conversion to WWII “Arsenal of Democracy” support, (4)
inventing the muscle car and spurring growth of the Pontiac brand, and (5) nurturing a revered and
diverse community of transportation industry workers and leaders. and,

WHEREAS, the “economic engine” of Pontiac people and enterprises included (and still includes) many
smaller businesses that supported this industry with assembly, parts and services, and

WHEREAS, the people of the Pontiac Community have for a century or more demonstrated the skills,
resourcefulness, innovation, resilience, and diversity to succeed in those efforts above; indeed much of

our city’s rich heritage and culture is a product of those same people’s lives as they contributed to the
transportation industry. and,

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed an initial plan for development of a non-profit Pontiac
Transportation Museum that will re-purpose a prior Pontiac school building in one of our historic
districts with the intent of: (1) restoring pride and knowledge of these past Pontiac community
achievements, {2) engaging local industry with the Museum in increased outreach of science,

technology, engineering and math capabilities to our school systems, and (3) creating an attraction for
generating visitorship and tourism in Pontiac.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

A. The City of Pontiac’s government strongly supports and prioritizes the Pontiac Transportation

Museum initiative as a prominent community project with significant upside civic enhancement
potential.




B. The City intends to actively seek and support outside funding alternatives that assist the

Museum’s capital campaign. Specific civic funding support may be considered at the

appropriate time pending Pontiac Transportation Museum proposals.

City planning and building administrative activity guiding renovation of the building/property

will be expedient and provided with minimal cost (to the extent feasible).

D. Asthe museum matures and opens, promotion of Pontiac community attractions will
prominently include the Museum as one of the City’s assets.




#)
RESOLUTION



Pontiac City Council Resolution

Resolution to Approve a Charter Revision

WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac, Michigan operates under a Home Rule Charter as
provided by the Home Rule Cities provisions of state law (Public Act 279 of 1909, MCL 117.1
et. Seq. as amended [referred to as the Home Rule Cities Act]); and,

WHEREAS, MCL 117.18 specifies the procedures for revising Home Rule Charter and

specifies that a legislative body by a 3/5 vote of the members elect may declare for a general
revision of the Charter; and,

WHEREAS, MCL 117.18 further provides that if a 3/5 vote of the legislative body calls
for a general revision of the Charter, the question of having a general charter revision shall be
submitted to the electors for adoption or rejection at the next general or municipal election, or at
a special election; and,

WHEREAS, in addition, MCL 117.18 states that in case the electors shall, by a majority
vote, declare in favor of such a revision, a charter commission shall be elected consisting of nine
(9) electors of the City having a residence of at least three (3) years in the municipality and that
the legislative body may by a 3/5 vote of the members elect provide that the Charter Commission
be selected at the same election at which the proposition to revise is submitted; and the selections
shall be void if the proposition to revise is not adopted.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Pontiac

declare that there is a need for a general revision if the Home Rule Charter of Pontiac, Michigan;
and,

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council, has determined for purposes of
efficiency and fiscal responsibility, the Charter Commission consisting of nine (9) electors of the
City of Pontiac having a residence of at least three (3) years in the municipality shall be selected
at the general municipal election to be held on Tuesday, August 3, 2021;

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THE SELECTION OF THE Charter
Commissioners shall be void if the proposition to revise is not adopted by a majority vote of the
electors.






CITY OF PONTIAC

OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM

TO: Council President and Members of the City Council Information Technology

FROM: Department
THRU:  Office of Mayor Deirdre Waterman
DATE:  April 6, 2021

RE: Ricoh Printers Contract for S0th District Court, Bowen Senior Center, Ruth

Peterson Senior Center and Youth Recreation and Enrichment Center

Problem: _
1. 50th District Court, Senior Centers, and Pontiac Youth Recreation and Enrichment
Center have 12-year old Ricoh printers that are in constant need of repair.

2. Replacement parts are no longer available for the printers,

3. Departments have become reliant on desktop printers' because they cannot trust the
reliability of the old Ricoh printers',

4. Cost of printing to the smaller printers are four times more than the cost of printing
to a Ricoh and printing is six times slower.

Solution: .
1. Replace existing Ricohs with new models.

2. Use desktop printers only as a backup for the new Ricohs to save costs.

3. Do not replace existing desktop printers when they breakdown.

1. We currently pay around $1,476 a month. This includes what we pay for toner and
maintenance on the old Ricohs and the cost of toners for the current desktop printers.

2. We will pay $945.12 a month total to lease eight new Ricoh printers plus $490.20
service costs (toner and on-site service) for a total of $1,43532 per month.

3. For $40.68 less per month, we can get eight new Ricohs.
4. Ricoh has a contact that will buy our current fleet.

5. The lease is for 60 months. At the end of the 60 months, the city owns the new
Ricohs.



Capabilities of new Ricoh printers that we currently do not have:
1. New Ricohs print 60 pages per minute.

2. You can scan directly from the printer to your home or shared drive.

(O8]

Scan to USB flash drive.
4. Full 10.1” color touchscreen operation panel.

5. Besides staples, there is a staple less finishing feature. Some models will have a
booklet maker and saddle stitching.

6. Scan to USB flash drive.
7. Wireless connectivity so you are not restricted to locations with a network port.

8. Mobile printing and scanning from tablets or smartphones.

Conclusion:
Whereas, 50th District Court, Bowen Senior Center, Ruth Peterson Senior Center and

Pontiac Youth Recreation and Enrichment Center utilize Ricoh printers that are 12 years

old; and

Whereas, Maintenance for these outdated printers’ costs approximately $1,476 per month;
and

Whereas, the current vendor can replace these printers with new printers on a lease for
$1,435.32 per month, including maintenance; and

Whereas, at the end of the 60-month lease the City will own the printers;

Now Therefore, Be It Resolved that the Pontiac City Council approves the lease and
maintenance of the new Ricoh printers at a rate of $1,435.32 per month for a period of 60
months, and authorizes the Mayor to execute contracts necessary to complete the
transaction.




















































CITY OF PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE EXERCISE OF OPTION FOR PURCHASE OF 825
GOLF ROAD

AT A REGULAR meeting of the Pontiac City Council of the City of Pontiac,
Michigan, held via Zoom on April 6, 2021, the following resolution was offered by
and supported by

~ Whereas, a certain Lease Agreement (with Purchase option) dated July 1, 2018 was
entered into between Creative School Solutions Management, LLC as Landlord and the
City of Pontiac as Tenant for the 3 year lease by the City of the premises commonly known
as 825 Golf Road, and within which the City has operated its youth center (the “Lease™)
which Lease expires on June 30, 2021; and

Whereas, Section 13 of the Lease grants the City with two options to purchase 825 Golf
Drive from the landlord; the first option period began April 1, 2019 and ended June 30,
2019 without the City exercising its option; and the second and final option period
commenced January 1, 2021 and ends June 30, 2021 (the “Purchase Option™); and

Whereas, the City’s purchase price of 825 Golf Drive during the second option period is
$2,850,000.00 per Section 13 of the Lease; and

Whereas, it is in the best interests of the City to maintain a youth center for the City’s
youth to safely and freely congregate and enjoy supervised physical activity; and

Whereas, the purchase of 825 Golf Drive is in the best interests of the City.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council does hereby
Authorize the Mayor to submit the required Offer Notice , as set forth in Section 13 of the
Lease, to authorize the office of the City Attorney to negotiate a purchase agreement with
the landlord consistent with Section 13 of the Lease, and if due diligence reviews do not
disclose any serious deficiencies to the building; to close on the purchase of 825 Golf Drive
on or before June 30, 2021.



PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL, Pontiac, Michigan, this 6 day
of April 2021.

AYES:

NAYS:

I, Garland Doyle, Interim Clerk of the City of Pontiac, hereby certify that the above

Resolution is a true copy and accurate copy of the Resolution passed by the City Council of
the City of Pontiac on April 6, 2021.

GARLAND DOYLE, City Clerk

Dated: ,2021




#12
RESOLUTION



CITY OF PONTIAC

OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM

Executive Branch

TO: Honorable City Council President Williams and City Council Members
FROM: Mayor Deirdre Waterman

DATE: March 31, 2021

RE: Resolution to Allocate a Maximum $50,000 for a One-Year

Contract for Lobbying Services related to the American
Rescue Act and Funding for Cities

The purpose of this memorandum is to formally request the allocation of general fund monies
to support the retention of a government lobbyist for the purpose of promoting and protecting
the City of Pontiac’s interest in the funding allocated by the American Rescue Act, the lack of
proper funding for Pontiac, and other resources and appropriations that may enhance the
City’s opportunities to receive an appropriate share of the funds being distributed to Cities
across the United States.

BACKGROUND

The City is now aware that the formula used to determine its share of the funds directed to
City’s under the American Rescue Act are grossly imbalanced when comparing the share
intended for Pontiac against Cities in Michigan of similar size and demographics. As indicated
by our outside accounting and audit firm Plante Moran:

“The “Metro Cities” are cities/townships over 50,000 in population and are direct recipients of CDBG. “Other
Non-Counties” are those under 50,000. Pontiac, despite your population being closer to 60,000, is on the
“Other Non-Counties” tab. | suspect it is because Oakland County administers your CDBG. The Metro Cities are
being funded based on the CDBG formula. The Other Non-Counties are strictly based on population.

On a per capita basis, the funding for Metro Cities is all over the place, due to the CDBG formula. For example,
Detroit is getting $1,312 per resident. Westland is getting $342 per resident. Canton Twp. is getting $109 per
resident.

On a sample basis, the Other Non-Counties appear to be approximately $92-$98 per resident. | believe the
fluctuation is due to the source I’'m using for population. | calculated Pontiac at $98/resident. The closest
example to you that demonstrates this disparity is Pontiac vs. Royal Oak, just 14 miles straight down
Woodward. You are getting $98/resident. With approximately the same population (just under 60,000), Royal
Oak is getting $29.76M or $503 per resident.



My understanding, based on a National League of Cities presentation earlier this week, is that these dollar
amounts are NOT final. | do not know how soon they will be finalized or who has the final say. | do agree your
best bet is to work through the MML and contact your own Rep and Senator.”

As such, the following resolution is recommended for your consideration:

Whereas, the City of Pontiac has been preliminarily allocated less than $100 per resident of the
intended local funding from the American Rescue Act; and

Whereas, the City of Pontiac, by act the previous Emergency Manager who committed the City to
the status of sub-recipient to Oakland County for certain Community Development Block Grant
Sfunding, with that status now impacting the formula used to determine the need in the City; and

Whereas, the City of Pontiac is in substantial need of assistance from the American Rescue Act
having been significantly affected by the economic effects of COVID-19 and continuing to realize
those affects through loss of income tax revenue, closing of local businesses, increased
unemployment, a pending eviction crisis, and general fund distress.

Now, Therefore Be It Resolved, that the City Council directs the amount of $50,000 be
appropriated from the general fund and allocated to an account directed by the City’s
Finance Director to be used for the contracting a government lobbyist to promote and
assist the City in engaging all opportunity to benefit from funding sources, or other
appropriations, in response to the devastating economic effects of the COVID-19 crisis.
It is further directed that the Mayor is authorized to perform such tasks as are necessary
to consider, review and contract an appropriately registered and experienced person or
firm to perform this service.




#13
RESOLUTION




City of Pontiac, Michigan

Department of Finance

Mayor Deirdre Waterman

R B B S R e S O T R T T T S s

To: Anthony Chubb, City Attorney

From: Darin Carrington, Finance Director

Date: March 4, 2021

Re: Review of Expenses and Grant in Clerk’s Office

The Finance Department has recently been forced to review a number of expenses and other items
in the City Clerk’s Office. More specifically, we have looked at expenditures that have been
charged to the following budgets which the Interim City Clerk is responsible for as follows:

e Clerk’s budget (Dept. 215)

e Elections budget (Dept. 191) (including the elections grant received by the Interim Cletk’s
Office in September 2020 from the Center for Tech and Civic Life)

This internal investigation was caused by the lack of responsive information from the Clerk’s
office and our discovery that election funds were spent on materials directly related to the status
and processing of medical marijuana application, an act which may cause the fund created by
application fees to be out of balance and subject to attack.

Several questions had been asked to the Interim Clerk to assist our Department in resolving this

budgetary conflict and to protect the City from any exposure on the CTCL Grant, including but
not limited to:

e What authority did you rely on to spend election funds for personal communications and
information on medical marijuana?

e What attorney authored the opinion you have asserted in the medical marijuana newsletter,
and under what authority did they act, and how were they compensated?

e Is your office intending to act independent of the Charter and pursue a legal position and

budget position that is contrary to the legal authority granted to the City Attorney in the
Charter?

The Interim clerk has not fully responded to our office, but we are providing this report based upon
the information known, and basing our recommendations on that knowledge.

47450 WOODWARD AVENUE, PONTIAC, M1 48342-5009
TELEPHONE: (248) 758-3100 - FAX: (248) 758-3170



Center for Tech and Civic Life Grant

This grant was received by the City in September 2020 in the amount of $405,564. The grant was
received from the Center for Tech and Civic Life (CTCLG). This entity is a Chicago based group
that is focused on expanding the election process to open and ease pathways to collect ballots and
enhance voter count and participation. The purpose of the grant was for planning and operations
for a safe election in 2020 during the public health crisis stemming from COVID-19.

Some of the budgeted expenses for the grant, as detailed in the City’s application included
temporary workers, website improvements, media campaign and ballot drop boxes. The total
planned expenses based on the application made were a total of approximately $405,000. An
itemized breakdown of these expenses was provided in the initial application and is attached to
this memo. There continues to be conflict with the Clerk’s office in the manner in which website
and other communications are completed including the dissemination of legal opinion that is
contrary to the asserted and established position of the City. Those areas of conflict are not
addressed herein, except to note the ongoing acts of the Clerk’s office that are outside the scope of
that office.

The funds for the grant were received by the City in September 2020. The grant had an expiration
date of December 31, 2020. As stipulated in the grant, any unused funds would have to be returned
to the Grantor. In December, the Interim Clerk provided an update to Council that he has/will be
requesting an extension of the grant’s December 31 deadline, but failed to provide this office
timely and accurate information as to the intended use of the remaining grant funds, the process
for the extension, fees or costs to be incurred, and other details that would assist this office in
tracking and balancing the grant against the City’s finances and accounting. As of that date, there
was approximately $165,000 in unspent funds. This extension would allow for the remaining
funds to be spent past the December 31 deadline. On February 4, 2021, the Interim Clerk received
a formal notice of extension of the grant from CTCLG. This extension provided that the remaining
funds could be used through June 30, 2021.

After receiving appropriate information, we have reviewed the expenses that have been applied
against the grant. Our Department has processed approximately $240,000 in expenses from this
grant to a number of different vendors. The reviewed expenses include payments to temporary
workers, computers and equipment. In reviewing these expenses, we have compared the actual
expenses against what was requested in the original grant application. Based on the review, the
expenses that have been charged against the grant are consistent with what was requested and
planned from the grant application and there are no apparent inconsistencies.

Our office would note that the City of Pontiac is the responsible fiduciary for this grant. It is our
expectation that any requests for materials from a City Department must be provided by that
Department. This is a key control for the Finance Department to ensure that the City is compliant
with relevant policies, procedures and regulations. As detailed above, while the Interim Clerk has
complied with several of our office’s requests for important materials, there have been instances
where our requests have gone unfulfilled or were not fulfilled at the time of request.

47450 WOODWARD AVENUE, PONTIAC, MI 48342-5009
TELEPHONE: (248) 758-3100 - FAX: (248) 758-3170



Department Expenses

Our Department has performed a general review of the expenses that have been charged to the two
relevant departments during this fiscal year.

Of particular concern are questions regarding newsletters that have gone out of the Clerk’s Office
and that have been funded by the Interim Clerk’s Elections budget. In the current fiscal year three
newsletters were paid out by the Interim Clerk’s Elections budget. Two of these newsletters were
funded through the above referenced grant, Based on my review the expenses for the first two
newsletters were expended as budgeted and in line with applicable City policies. The third
newsletter was paid out of the Elections budget. The subject of this newsletter largely centered on
the issue of the City’s Marihuana Ordinance.

Marihuana Newsletter

This newsletter was sent by the Interim Clerk in November 2020 and was titled Special Issue:
Medical Marihuana. We have looked at the expenses for this newsletter that were incurred with
City vendor Oakland Strategies. Based on my review, the costs paid, approximately $10,000, do
not appear out of order for this type of purchase. The significant issue in this instance, however,
is not the reasonableness of the expense, rather, that the expense relates directly to medical
marijuana application matters. This expense would properly be paid from the fee account created
from applicant fees for medical marijuana. The paying of this expense from an unrelated account
may cause a deficiency in the applicant fund when properly corrected as all expenses for the
processing and award of medical marijuana permits must be accounted from the applicant fund.

An additional issue of significance is the material that was communicated via this newsletter. The
newsletter made certain representations about the City’s Medical Marthuana Zoning Ordinance,
zoning district boundaries and eligibility of certain applicants. Per the City Attorney’s letter dated
December 11, 2020, it found that a number of these representations were in direct conflict with
City’s official legal position. Additionally, this letter indicated that the material in this newsletter
could subject the City to legal liability. There has been no offer of evidence as to where these
incorrect legal positions derived, nor has there been an answer to how the Clerk’s office will
correct the improper statements. This may have further impact on the medical marijuana applicant
fund as costs are incurred to correct these matters.

Recommendations
Based on our review as detailed above we are making the following recommendations:

e Written notice be provided to the Interim Clerk demanding that the newsletter expense be
properly allocated, with a corrective resolution from Council, and further demanding that
the Clerk’s office provide written confirmation of its abide by the legal authority of the
City Attorney aa set forth in the Charter.

e Restatement of City policy be provided to the Interim Clerk identifying the requirement
that approval of expenses and requisitions be approved prior to incurring or committing to
any expenses

e Per the City Attorney’s December 11, 2020 letter, any newsletters and mailings by the
Interim Clerk will require a Resolution of approval by the City Council

47450 WOODWARD AVENUE, PONTIAC, MI 48342-5009
TELEPHONE: (248) 758-3100 - FAX: (248) 758-3170



The Finance Department and staff will not approve or process any invoices for newsletters
or mailings that do not have the Council Resolution as required by the City Attorney’s
letter of December 11, 2020

The Finance Department will work with the City Attorney to ensure that any newsletters
or mailings from the Interim Clerk are reviewed to ensure that the information contained
within these mailings are consistent with the policies and legal opinions of the City

The Finance Department staff will be provided with written notice of these new policies

and processes to ensure that we are able to fully implement and comply with the proposed
recommendation

47450 WOODWARD AVENUE, PONTIAC, MI 48342-5009
TELEPHONE: (248) 758-3100 - FAX: (248) 758-3170



w

o O

e

Attachments

Medical Marihuana Newsletter

December 15, 2020 Council Agenda and Report from Clerk on Grant Extension
Report to Center for Tech and Civic Life on Grant Expenditures

Grant Extension Application

Email from Center for Tech and Civic Life extending grant

Cease and Decease Letter from City Attorney

47450 WOODWARD AVENUE, PONTIAC, M1 48342-5009
TELEPHONE: (248) 758-3100 - FAX: (248) 758-3170




CITY OF PONTIAC

OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM

Executive Branch

TO: Honorable City Council President Williams and City Council Members

FROM:  Mayor Deirdre Waterman, City Attorney Anthony Chubb

DATE: March 31, 2021

RE: Resolution to Adopt Finance Director Recommendations

The purpose of this memorandum is to formally request the enforcement of the Finance
Director’s Report dated March 4, 2021, attached hereto, wherein the office reported
concerns regarding certain expenditures within the clerk’s office and the impact and effect of

those actions.

As such, the following resolution is recommended for your consideration:

Whereas, the City 's Finance Director conducted an internal investigation regarding the use of
Election Funds for Medical Marijuana Application communications and other unrelated
expenses, and

Whereas, the Interim City Clerk has failed to provide a complete response to the inquiries of the
Finance Director and there remains an error in the authorization and proper budget allocations
for the expenses, and

Whereas, the City Administration hereby requests that the City Council exercise its authority and
enforce proper performance of duties by the Interim City Clerk and acknowledge and adopt
the Recommendation of the City’s Finance Director.

Now, Therefore Be It Resolved, that the City Council directs the following action:

(1) Written notice be provided to the Interim Clerk demanding that the newsletter expense be
properly allocated, with a corrective resolution from Council, and further demanding that
the Clerk’s office provide written confirmation of its abide by the legal authority of the
City Attorney aa set forth in the Charter.

(2) Restatement of City policy be provided to the Interim Clerk identifying the requirement
that approval of expenses and requisitions be approved prior to incurring or committing
to any expenses

(3) Per the City Attorney’s December 11, 2020 letter, any newsletters and mailings by the
Interim Clerk will require a Resolution of approval by the City Council

(4) The Finance Department and staff will not approve or process any invoices for



)

(6)

newsletters or mailings that do not have the Council Resolution as required by the City
Attorney’s letter of December 11, 2020

The Finance Department will work with the City Attorney to ensure that any newsletters
or mailings from the Interim Clerk are reviewed to ensure that the information contained
within these mailings are consistent with the policies and legal opinions of the City

The Finance Department staff will be provided with written notice of these new policies

and processes to ensure that we are able to fully implement and comply with the proposed
recommendation




#14

Communication
from the

City Clerk



GARLAND S. Dovie, M.P.A.
Interim City Clerk
FOIA Coordinator

Orrice OF THE CiTy CLERK
47450 Woodward Avenue
Pontiac, Michigan 48342

Phone: (248) 758-3200

SHEILA GRANDISON Fax: (248) 758-3160
Jeputy City Clerk

MEMORANDUM

TO: Honorable City Council

FR: Garland S. Doyle, Interim City Clerk
DA: April 1,2021

RE: City Clerk’s Response to Nonfactual Report from the Finance Department Regarding
Alleged Diversion of Election Division Budget Funds

cc: Darin Carrington, Finance Director and Anthony Chubb, City Attorney

The following are my responses to the questions from the Finance Director and City Attorney.
The response was dated March 11, 2021,

First of all there was no improper use of Election funds. Since being appointed City Clerk,
I have been fully transparent. The following are my responses to your questions. I have
previously answered many of these questions.

1. Please provide the rationale and source of the authority for using General Fund Election
dollars for Medical Marihuana purposes related to the Fall 2020 Special issue Medical
Marihuana newsletter. Additionally, provide copies of any other expenses that used
General Fund Election dollars for Medical Marihuana-related expenses.

Answer: Since Ordinance 2357(B) “City of Pontiac Medical Marihuana Facilities
Ordinance” was approved at the Primary Election on August 7, 2018 and affirmed after
the recount on September 12, 2018, it was appropriate to allocate the newsletter
expenditure to accounts within Dept 191 Elections. The purpose of the newsletter was to
give citizens an update on a ballot approved initiative. I have received many inquiries from
citizens about the ballot initiative.

It would have been inappropriate to spend Dept 255 Medical Marihuana budget dollars
since the dollars within that budget are derived from the Medical Marihuana Application
Fee. The application fee is to help defray administrative costs associated with the review of
Medical Marihuana facility applications.



2. From whom did you obtain the legal opinion used for the material contained in the
Medical Marihuana newsletter? Please provide a copy of this legal opinion.

Answer: I did not receive a legal opinion prior to the distribution of the newsletter. Since
the newsletter publication, I have received an independent legal opinion that validates any
statements that were made in the newsletter. I have attached a copy of the legal opinion.

3. Regarding question number two, do you recognize and abide by the responsibilities to
have and fully describe to the finance department/director any fiscal information that the
finance department is requesting?

Answer: What fiscal information is the Finance Department requesting regarding question
number 2? I have given the Finance Department all relevant information regarding the
newsletter invoice. I have attached another copy.

4. Do you further understand the finance department is accountable for making sure that
expenses/use of city funds are acceptable in accounting standards and/or subject to audit?

Answer: With over twenty years of professional municipal government experience, I am
very familiar with government accounting standards and audits. Are you aware that the
Charter gives the City Council the authority over the budget? As the fiscal stewards of the
city, they have requested and are entitled to a forensic audit.

5. If you were aware that the statement in the newsletter conflicted with the official City
ordinance established by the City Attorney per the City of Pontiac’s charter, do you
understand your duty to abide by the policy?

Answer: I am very familiar with the City Charter. I also know the ignorance of law is no
excuse. I have stated publicly that the City Attorney was telling me to break the law. I am
supported by an independent legal opinion.

6. It was hard to get information from you; please note my original request. Have you
complied with supplying the information requested by the Finance Director? Why were
you delayed in responding to the request for information?

Answer: I was troubled by your request. If you had any concerns about the invoice, then
the vendor should have not been paid until your questions were answered. I do not have the
authority to issue checks. Since the vendor had been paid, there was no need for an
immediate response. Furthermore, I do not understand why payments for invoices
unrelated to the newsletter have been held up. Please clarify, why? Again, I would think if
you had questions about the newsletter, than that invoice would have been held but it was
approved and paid by the Finance Department. Why are selective invoices being held?
Please respond.



7. You stated that you are abiding by the opinion of an outside legal counsel but have
declined to state who that is or how they’re being compensated. Do you realize that secret
legal counsel is inappropriate?

Answer: There is no secret legal counsel. I have attached the independent legal opinion. In
order to protect myself from any civil and/or criminal liability, I felt it was necessary for
me to engage independent legal counsel. I believed City Attorney Chubb was telling me to
perform an illegal act. No city funds were used to compensate The Curcio Law Firm.




106 Tregent St
Pontiac, MI 48342

Phone: 248,895.6061
E-mail: jasonbauer@gmail.com

Directions

Please make check out to; Customer:

City of Pontiac

. , Elections Division
Jason Bauer

106 Tregent St
Pontiac, MI 48342

Involce#: 000366
Date: October 28, 2020

I'erins

Your Order # ‘(“)uv Order # Sales'Rep Ship-Via

Qunatiry Itcm ‘ Units: = Dusuihliun : Discotint U \'l'ﬂxnhlu Unit Prce
) 11x17 Election Mailers (8 page folded in .
25,000 Printing half and stapled Full color w/bleed) $4,950.00
1 Design 8,5x11 Mall Plece $600.00
24,253 Postage USPS Postage . $4,365.54
24,253 Handling Mall Handling ’ $975.00
. . : 2 S 10,8%0,54
Trvolce wes dhagged ro (o[- Fl-8lE 05 Subtotal Hog%
i(\(\_ ch-\a\y . Tax TAX EXEMPT
.0 .
Chacse Lrvace oS Sollows 5 Shippig
. Y ¢ - 1A ) -
1oy -1al - &\%‘ o0 E 12)) (‘;L C‘-—'o ﬁ}‘e Miseellaneous
} oo-H ©0o N
(O}~ \Q|-3%a.0 SA TN Balance Due $10,890.54

L )
{01-101- 128,000 ® SZA0SH \D\gx\


































CILIKF

THE CURCIO LAW FIRM

Attorney Memorandum’

To: Garland Doyle, Pontiac City Clerk

From: Nick Curcio, Attorney

Re:  Locational Requirements for Marijuana Growers and Processors

Date: March 9, 2021

In 2019, the City of Pontiac adopted Ordinance Number 2363 to establish zoning
requirements for medical marijuana facilities.> Among other things, the ordinance
establishes three medical marijuana overlay districts (MMODs), known as the Walton
Boulevard MMOD, the Cesar Chavez MMOD, and the C-2 downtown MMOD. The
stated purpose of MMOD:s is to “provide for the placement of Medical Marihuana®
related uses . . . with a goal of minimizing potential adverse impacts on adjacent property
owners, neighbors, and the City.”* Over the last year, questions have arisen as to
whether, and in what circumstances, the zoning ordinance allows parcels outside the
MMOD:s to be approved for marijuana-related uses. To help clarify this issue, you asked
for my opinion as to whether the Planning Commission is authorized to grant a special
exception permit for a marijuana grower or processor at a location outside of the
MMOD:s. You also asked if a conditional rezoning agreement could authorize the
Planning Commission to do so, without rezoning the property in question to be part of
an MMOD.

For the reasons described below, I believe the answer to both of those questions is
“no.” If called upon to interpret the City’s zoning ordinances, a reviewing court would
likely conclude that the MMODs are the exclusive locations in the City where growers

and processors can legally operate. While the zoning ordinance expressly allows other

! This memo is one of several that you asked me to prepare as your privately retained legal counsel.
During our initial consultation, you explained to me that you felt pressured to take actions in your
role as City Clerk that you believed to be contrary to applicable law. Accordingly, you asked for my
opinion on various legal issues to help you decide how to respond to those pressures. Please note that
I do not represent or have any relationship with the City of Pontiac, Pursuant to Section 4.202(a) of
the Pontiac City Charter, the City Attorney is responsible for “supervising the conduct of all the legal
business of the City and its departments.”

2 The statements of fact in this opinion are based primarily on your representations to me during our
initial consultation. For the most part, | have not independently verified those representations.

3 Notably, both the City’s zoning ordinance and various state statutes use an antiquated spelling of
“marijuana” that includes an “h” instead of a “.” This memo uses the more modern spelling except
where quoting directly from ordinance or statutory text.

4 Pontiac Zoning Ordinance § 3.1101,



types of medical marijuana facilities to be located outside of the MMOD:s subject to a
special exception permit, it makes no such allowance for grower and processor uses.
Accordingly, the City cannot reasonably interpret the zoning ordinance to provide such
an allowance, nor can it create such an allowance through a contract with a private party.
Rather, the only scenarios in which a parcel that is currently outside of an MMOD could
be lawfully approved for grower or processor uses would be if: (1) the parcel is rezoned
to be within an MMOD; or (2) the City amends the zoning ordinance to allow medical
marijuana growers and processors in other locations, either as permitted uses or special
exception uses.

By way of further explanation, there are several sections of the zoning ordinance that
are relevant to answering the question posed above. First, section 2.201 explains the
distinction between the different designations for zoning uses in the City of Pontiac. A
“permitted use” is one that is clearly compatible with a given zoning district and therefore
“require[s] a minimum of limitations.” Permitted uses are allowed “by right,” subject
only to site plan review to the extent required by section 6.202. A “special exception
use,” by contrast, is a use “presenting potential injurious effect upon residential and
other property, unless authorized under specific imposed conditions.” In particular,
special exception uses require a special exception permit issued by the Planning
Commission pursuant to a more rigorous review process provided in article 6, chapter 3
of the zoning ordinance. If the zoning ordinance does not authorize a defined use as
either a permitted use or a special exception use in a particular zoning district, section
2.202 provides that the use is prohibited in that district.

Pursuant to section 2.204 of the zoning ordinance, a table labeled “Table 2” lists
“the uses that may be permitted in each zoning district.” In doing so, it uses different
symbols to distinguish uses that are permitted by right from those that require a special
exception permit, Among other things, Ordinance Number 2363 amends Table 2 to

include five different types of medical marijuana facilities, each of which is defined and



authorized by the Michigan Medical Marihuana Facilities Licensing Act. The new

sections of Table 2 appear as follows:

Commersial, Offive, and Serviee Uses
Resldentlal Industrlal
Commaerclal Districts :
Districts Districts
R4 R2 R3 G0 C1 G2 C3 C4 M1 M2 [P
. SBcﬂén
. 0
Medlcal Maribuana Grower 0 2544
Sectlon
o 0
Medical Marthuana Progessor ) 0 2 548
H o
; . B Section
o . i iy ‘ ] . * s‘)
{Modical Marlhuana Provisioning ) 'k . ok % o o ; 2546
Ganters : i P
Medical Marlhuana Safely .- S ook w e e Sectlon
’ N j) ' .
Cormpliance Faclllly i - 2,547
Medical Marliuana Secura R 2 % Sectlon
] ' ( S
Transporler . ' ; 2,548

‘ *Speclal Exception Permit Uses autside the Medlcal Marlhuana Overlay Distrlcts '
O Principal Permitted Usas In the Medlcal Marihuana Overlay Districts

As shown above, the rows in the table for grower and processor uses are identical,
with both having a circle symbol (o) in the M-1, M-2, and I1P-1 columns. According to
the key below the table, that symbol indicates that a use is a principal permitted use in
the MMOD:s. In otherwords, when a parcel is zoned M-1, M-2, or IP-1 with an MMOD
overlay designation, grower and processor uses are permitted by right. Notably, the rows
in the table for grower and processor uses do not include any asterix symbols (*), which
indicate that a use can be authorized via special exception permit for parcels outside the
MMODs. By contrast, the rows for the other three types of medical marijuana uses
contain asterix symbols in various columns.

In addition to Table 2, there are several other sections in the zoning ordinance that
are potentially relevant to the question posed. For each use type, Ordinance Number
2363 creates a new zoning section that provides locational and other regulatory
requirements. For example, section 2.544 pertains to grower facilities, and states in a

subsection entitled “Licensing” that “Medical Marihuana Grower uses are not permitted

3



outside the Cesar Chavez and Walton Blvd Medical Marihuana Overlay Districts.”
Section 2.545 pertains to processors and has a nearly identical provision. By contrast,
sections 2.546, 2.547, and 2.548, which pertain to provisioning centers, safety
compliance facilities, and secure transporters, respectively, state that each of those uses
may be located outside of the MMOD:s. For example, section 2.546 states: “No More
than five (5) Provisioning Centers shall be established in the C-1, C3, and C4 zoned
properties combined outside the Medical Marihuana Overlay Districts.” Sections 2.547 and
2.548 include similar language.

The final relevant section of Ordinance Number 2363 is section 3.1106, which
provides: “Medical Marihuana uses outside the Medical Marihuana Overlay Districts are
subject to Planning Commission approval following the Standards for Approval of
Section 6.303 for Special Exception Permits, and Article 2, Chapter S, Development
Standards for Specific Uses.”

In my opinion, these sections collectively indicate that growers and processors can
only be located in the MMODs, where they are permitted by right. I understand that
some have suggested otherwise, asserting that section 3.1106 allows all five types of
medical marijuana uses to locate outside of the MMODs if the Planning Commission
approves a given location by issuing a special exception permit. This reading of the
ordinance is contrary to two principal rules of legal interpretation, and therefore is not
legally viable, First, when possible, courts must “give every word meaning, and should
seek to avoid any construction that renders any part of a statute surplus or ineffectual.”
As the Supreme Court has explained, “when there is tension, or even conflict, between
sections of a statute, this Court has a duty to, if reasonably possible, construe them both
s0 as to give meaning to each; that is, to harmonize them.”® Here, if section 3.1106 is
read to allow all five types of medical marijuana uses to locate outside of the MMODs,
the sections of the ordinance that expressly prohibit growers and processors from
locating outside of the MMODs (i.e., Table 2 and sections 2.544 and 2.545) would be
superfluous and ineffectual. On the other hand, all of the relevant sections can be easily
harmonized by reading section 3.1106 more narrowly, so that its reference to “Medical

Marihuana uses outside the Medical Marihuana Overlay Districts” refers only to the

5 In ve Turpening Estate, 258 Mich App 464, 465; 671 NW2d 567 2003).
¢ Nowell v Titan Ins Co, 466 Mich 478, 483; 648 NW2d 157 (2002).



three specific types of uses that are expressly allowed to locate outside of the MMODs
pursuant to other sections (i.e., provisioning centers, safety compliance facilities, and
secure transporters). This reading is perfectly consistent with the text of the ordinance,
in that it does not require giving any words or phrases irregular meanings.

A second relevant principal of interpretation is that when two sections of a statute
or ordinance are in conflict with each other, the more specific provision takes precedence
over the more general one.” This rule is thought to help courts give effect to the
legislature’s intent, on the theory that “the specific provision comes closer to addressing
the very problem posed by the case at hand and is thus more deserving of credence.”®
Here, to the extent that the various provisions of the zoning ordinance are in conflict
with each other, the provisions that directly address the locational requirements for
growers and processors are more specific than section 3.1106, which refers to medical
marijuana uses more generally. Accordingly, a court would likely find that the more
specific provisions that prohibit growers and processors from locating outside of the
MMODs take precedence over any language in section 3.1106 that might suggest
otherwise.

Aside from the interpretive issue involving section 3.1106, some have suggested that
the Court of Appeals’s decision in Reilly v Marion Township® empowers the Planning
Commission to grant special exception permits for growers and processors outside of the
MMOD:s, even if the text of the ordinance does not do so. This suggestion is based on a
fundamental misunderstanding of the holding in Reilly, In that case, the Court
considered a narrow issue of interpretation involving the Marion Township zoning
ordinance: whether the zoning board was authorized to grant a special exception permit
for a commercial trucking operation even though commercial trucking was not
specifically listed in the zoning ordinance as a special exception use permitted in any
zoning district.'® The court concluded that the zoning board had the power to do so,

because language in the ordinance specifically “empowered [the board] to add to the list

™ See, e.g., Bruwer v Oaks (On Remand), 218 Mich App 392, 396; 554 NW2d 345 (1996).

8 Scalia & Garner, Reading Law: The Interpretation of Legal Texts (St. Paul: Thomson/West, 2012),
p 183,

® 113 Mich App 584, 317 NW2d 693 (1982).

1014, at 588-589.



of special use exceptions those exceptions deemed necessary to protect adjacent
properties, the general neighborhood, and its residents and workers.”"!

There are at least three reasons why the decision in Reilly has no bearing on the
question you posed above. First, unlike the ordinance in Reilly, the Pontiac Zoning
Ordinance is not silent as to whether the various medical marijuana facilities are allowed
as special exception uses. Rather, Table 2 and other sections of the ordinance specifically
indicates that some are and some are not. This fact alone distinguishes the present
circumstance from Reilly. Second, also unlike the ordinance in Reilly, the Pontiac Zoning
Ordinance does not include any language indicating that the Planning Commission can
add to the list of uses that are permitted by special exception permit. Third, it is
questionable whether Reilly remains good law after the passage of the Michigan Zoning
Enabling Act (MZEA). In Whitman v Gallien Township,'* the Court of Appeals held that
the MZEA, which was enacted in 2006, “require[es] that a zoning ordinance specifically
enumerate the land uses and activities that are eligible for special-use status.”"* In doing
50, the court seemed to indicate that the open-ended list of special exception uses at issue
in the Reilly may not comply with the new requirements in the MZEA."

Finally, some have suggested that the City can allow growers and processors to locate
outside of the MMOD:s by entering into conditional rezoning agreements wherein the
City agrees to rezone a parcel to a zoning designation that does not ordinarily allow
growers or processors (i.e.,, a zoning designation outside of the MMODs), but then
provides in the agreement that the parcel can be used as a grower or processor via a
special exception permit. In my opinion, the MZEA does not allow this type of
arrangement. The relevant provision of the MZEA authorizes conditional rezoning
agreements by providing that “[a]ln owner of land may voluntarily offer in writing, and
the local unit of government may approve, certain use and development of the land as a
condition to a rezoning of the land or an amendment to a zoning map.””® When used in
the zoning context, the word “condition” refers to a “limitation[] on the use of the land

and to protect nearby owners.”'® Accordingly, the purpose of a conditional rezoning

'1d. at 588.

12288 Mich App 672; 808 NW2d 9 (2010).

PId. at 17.

"1d

5 MCL 125.3405.

16 City of Troy v Aslanian, 170 Mich App 523, 528; 428 NW2d 703 (1988).



agreement is to place additional limitations on a specific parcel that would not otherwise
exist under the zoning designation to which the property is being rezoned. For example,
a community might choose to rezone a residential parcel to a commercial designation,
but then provide by agreement that the parcel can only be used for a lower-intensity
commercial use, like an ice cream store, rather than for any of the commercial uses
ordinarily permitted in the district.'” Importantly, nothing in the text of the statute
indicates that a rezoning agreement can authorize a property owner to engage in uses
that are not allowed in the zoning district to which the parcel is being rezoned. Such an
arrangement is inconsistent with the common understanding of the word “condition,”
which refers to imposition of additional limitations rather than granting of additional
rights. Therefore, if the City wishes to use conditional rezoning to allow growers or
processors in new locations, the only permissible way to do so would be to rezone the
patcel in question to an MMOD zoning designation. A reviewing court would likely
determine that a rezoning agreement that rezones a parcel to a different zoning
designation, outside of an MMOD, cannot authorize grower or processot uses to operate
via special exception permit.

I hope this memo sufficiently answers your question. Please let me know if there is

anything further I can do to assist with this issue.

7 As one prominent commentator has explained, “To reduce controversy or concerns the applicant
might volunteer to condition the zoning amendment to restrict the use of the parcel(s) to only a
specific certain land use. For example an ice cream store rather than all the possible land uses in a
commercial district. If the zoning amendment is approved something like a deed restriction is placed
on the parcel so that only the restricted uses of the parcel are possible.” Kurt H. Schindler, Michigan

State University Extension, “All zoning does not have to include everything in the Michigan Zoning
Enabling Act,” August 19, 2015





